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CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . . (gavel). . . Aloha and good morning, everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I'm calling the meeting for the Infrastructure Management Committee to
order. Today is June 7 th , 2010 and it is 9:05 a.m. Welcome, everyone, for being here.
Members, thank you for being here early in the morning after the long weekend.
Hopefully everybody had a good, restful weekend. And this morning in attendance for
the Members, we have the Vice-Chair, Mr. Joseph Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. We have our Council Chair, Mr. Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We have the lady in the house this morning, Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning. Somebody's gotta hold up the lady.
. . .(chuckle). . .

CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . . (chuckle). . . Good morning. We have Mr. . . .I'm sorry, we have the
Vice-Chair of the Council, Mr. Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: We have Member Sol Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Aloha, good morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Aloha, good morning. And we have Member Michael Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning and aloha, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning. And we have a Non-Voting Member in attendance this
morning, and we welcome Member Wayne Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning, everyone. Thank you for being here again. And at this
time, I'd like to introduce the representatives from the Administration. First we have
Mr. Milton. . .Arakawa, the Director of Public Works; and I see we have Mr. Brian
Hashiro, Chief of the Highways, also from Public Works. And they're here for IM-39,
and I know Mr. . . .the Director is here also for IM-35. We also have here representing
the Police Department, Sergeant Barry Aoki who's in the gallery right now, and he's with
the Maui Police Department, Traffic Division. Representing the Environmental
Management Department, we have Director Cheryl Okuma and she will be here for
IM-31. And Sergeant Aoki is here for IM-35. Also doing the work of the Committee for
us is our Committee Secretary, Camille Sakamoto to my far left, and to my near left is
our Legislative Analyst, Mr. Mike Geers.
So this morning, Members, we have three items on our agenda. Item IM-39 is the
Donation of asphalt paver to the Department of Public Works. Second, we have IM-35
which is the Traffic safety measures in the area of the Doris Todd Memorial Christian
School. And the third and last item we have will be IM-31, which is a Contract to
provide consultant services for Ma'alaea Bay Coral Reef Degradation Study. So we also
welcome to these proceedings members of the public that are in the gallery, and also
members of the public that are watching this meeting on Akaku.
Before we get started with the testimonies, I wanna give the ground rules this morning as
far as testifying, and we'll be accepting public testimony shortly. Those wishing to
testify should sign up at the table up in the lobby. And testifying will be limited to three
minutes. The yellow light will indicate that you have 30 seconds remaining and should
begin to conclude. Testifiers are requested to state their name for the record and to
indicate who they are representive, representing, if applicable.
At this time, everyone, may I request that you put your cell phones either on vibrate mode
or turn them off, or any other devices that may go off during the meeting so that the
meeting will not be disrupted.
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Okay. We're going to go to our testimony at this time. And testifying first is
Jock Yamaguchi, and he'll be testifying on IM-3 1, and he is testifying for himself.
Mr. Yamaguchi, please.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Before I get, before I get started, you guys have a stack of documents
there. I have shortened it so it makes it much easier to read. If, you know, either myself
pass this out or.. .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And with that, with that notice, Members, realize that some
new. . .documents have been placed on your desks this morning. So be aware that they're
there and there may be others that will be distributed. Okay. Mr. Yamaguchi.. .
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .if you're ready, would you start.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Good morning, Chair, and. . .Chair and Members of the Committee.
Before I get started on the item, which is Item 31, I wanted to personally acknowledge
and thank Chair Mateo for fighting for the TAT funds this past Budget Session, as well as
Budget Chair Joe Pontanilla and the entire Committee for making some really courageous
decisions and all the hard work that the Committee did.
Anyway, my name is Jock Yamaguchi and I'm testifying as a concerned citizen on
Item 31. I was an Executive Assistant to Councilmember, former
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, and I worked closely with her and
Congresswoman Mazie Hirono's staff on the contract that will be discussed today.
And let me start by saying this. . .you know, I've been with the Council for about, about
ten years now. I was with some great Members, with Dain Kane, Michelle Anderson,
now with, with Nishiki. But, to me, if this contract is allowed to go forward, it would
probably be the most damaging and unjust actions to the community that I've wit...„
witnessed during that time.
And why do I say this? First, I believe it will be a complete waste of the Federal funds
that Michelle; the Maalaea Community Association, with Ms. Pam Daoust; and
Mazie Hirono spent so much time to get these Federal funds from, from Congress.
Second, ironically and perhaps more importantly, just me personally, my concern is that
the results of any study with this particular consultant would be used by the Department
of Environmental Management to justify the con..., continued use of injection wells not
only in Maalaea Bay, but also in West Maui and, and in Kahului. I also fear that the
Department might use the results of this study with this particular consultant to counter
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the many objective and published studies already completed by people like the University
of Hawaii and the USGS.
And we don't have to, I don't have the time to go into the results of this study, but we
know what this consultant will say. Okay. I anticipate he will say that the injection wells
have little or no impact on our nearshore waters. Okay, I don't have time to go into that,
but we, we can anticipate that. Okay. But I'll. . .let me start, and, and I should've passed
it out, there's a USGS study that came out in 2009, and I'll just read real briefly from it,
the title, "Multitracer Approach to Detecting Wastewater Plumes from Municipal
Injection Wells in Nearshore Marine Waters at Kihei and Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii". Okay,
so it's 182 pages, so I condensed it down. But the executive summary states, Municipal
wastewater plumes discharging from aquifer to ocean were detected by nearshore
wading surveys at Kihei and Lahaina, on the island of Maui in Hawaii. And then further
down it says, The main question to be answered by the study--and a topic of longstanding interest--is where and how the effluent discharges to the nearshore, nearshore
coastal environment. These injection wastewater plumes were detected at both locales
and with positive detection across the multiple wastewater tracers in both instances.
Let me skip down where it says, Wastewater presence was confirmed by detection of the
pharmaceuticals carbamazepine (an anticonvulsant) and sulfamethoxazole (an
antibiotic) and by elevated nitrogen and phosphorus concentrations within the plume
format.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Yamaguchi, yeah, could you conclude, please? The red light.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Thirty seconds?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Go ahead.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Okay. The bottom line is this, you know what, I don't have time. . .I was
going to walk you guys through the whole process. But Michelle got the $184,000 from
Mazie for the specific objective--and I'll just finish up, Chair--to define an immediate
solution, not for further studies, but an immediate solution for the injection wells at
Maalaea Bay. Through the RFP process and then the contract with this consultant it has
gone astray and it's basically to do further studies.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Yamaguchi. Remain there if there's any questions. But
at, first, I would like to tell you that there weren't enough copies that you gave us to
distribute to the Members, and so when we do have time to make the copies, we'll
distribute it then. Okay. So at this point, Members, any questions for Mr. Yamaguchi?
Member Pontanilla?
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Hey, thank you, Jock, for providing us all those
written documentation. And, you know, I agree with you that we should be doing
something in regards to injection wells and how do we. . .eliminate those injection wells
as well as provide capabilities of utilizing recycle, recycled water for irrigation. You
know, this afternoon we have this Maui Island Plan that we need to review, and part of
the Maui Island Plan is just that, the issue with wastewater and the use of injection wells.
And as I read the documentation for reuse as well as trying to take care all of the injection
wells, I, I think we're behind the ball, eight ball right now because the study that was
made by the GPAC started about three years ago, and part of the action plan is to do that.
But the thing that's missing and, as you know, that, you know, I've questioned every
department that came forward during the budget process, is that has anything been
budgeted or, or maybe a goal has been set in regards to injection wells as well as reuse of
recycled water, and none of 'em had any idea in regards to the cost of this thing here.
And, you know, I'm, I'm glad that Ms. Anderson had, you know, gotten some money to
do the study at Maalaea Bay. But for, for me, though, it, it's the process in regards to
RFPs that need to be looked at. And, you know, as you know, once we submit an RFP,
you know, you have a number of vendors that do. . .I, I guess, bid on the project and in
most cases for the County of Maui we take the lowest bidder. So that's something that
we've gotta contend with, you know, because the consultant that we have hired and, and,
you know, I'm going to find out from the Department, you know, what was the process,
is this the lowest bidder in regards to doing the study at Maalaea. Yeah. Sometimes, you
know, when you hire someone, you know, that you can have positive results for what is
required by the Department, and, you know, I'll ask those questions as, as they come up.
But again, you know, I know your heart is in the right place and, and we'll move forward
in, in the questioning of the Department regarding this thing here. But again, you know,
it should be a high priority in regards to the reusing of water, recycled water for irrigation
as well as, you know, eliminating injection wells as, you know, study may have. . .and,
and information that we got that they're part of the issue in regards to reefs. Thank you.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: May I respond? Thank you for the question.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: No, the Member didn't have a question for you.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Oh, I thought there were questions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And may I remind the Members that the. . .if there's a need to have any
part of the testimony rephrased, then you have an opportunity to do that. As far as the
other information or comments you're making, that should be held for the deliberation
part on the item. So any Members have any questions to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Molina?

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 7, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Mr. Yamaguchi. So
I'll, I'll ask my question straightforward just based on, you know, what I've been hearing
and I guess some of the written information you've given to us. So let me get this
straight. So your concern is that the contract is not, the original intent of the contract is
not being, being carried out by the Department, and you're expressing some concerns
about who this contract is being awarded to? Am, am I correct in asking that?
MR. YAMAGUCHI: That is correct. It's a, it's a. . .for me I have two main concerns, many, but
two main concerns as, as you said, Councilmember Molina, is number one, whether
there's a misuse of Federal monies. 'Cause as you know, even through the budget
process, you know, Michelle and Mazie were very specific on the objective--okay, the
Federal government required that. What is the goal, how will this money be spent, what
is the problem? And if you look at Michelle Anderson's original request to Mazie and
then all, in all our correspondences with Mazie's office, it was not for more studies, it
was to find an immediate alternative in Maalaea Bay. And in fact. . .I, I. . .in, in one
instance I'll commend Dave Taylor, 'cause during the Wailea 670 proceedings he
mentioned that the, the future is going toward private pocket injection wells. So with,
with that Michelle said okay, you know, and regarding funding this was, in working with
Mazie's office, was to, to find out what alternative there could be. And then Mazie said
hey, after we get and fmd out what alternative there are, then come in and request the
bigger money, the Federal funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: The second one is the procurement process, yeah, because as
Councilmember Pontanilla accurately pointed out, there is a procurement process. But I
don't know the answer. But here's the thing. If you look at the RFP that went out,
it's. . .it, it. . .you can read it, the primary objectives, okay, the consultant shall
accomplish the following primary objectives--this is from the RFP, at least the one that I
got a copy of, and it's real short. Through [sic] examination and assessment of all
potential factors that may be affecting Maalaea Bay's reef health; and recommendations
of long-term planning tools to better protect our reefs, and it goes on. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And if I could just add one last, last question. . .and you used
in your words "most damaging unjust action that you have seen". So just clarify that a
little bit, as much as you can-MR. YAMAGUCHI: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --when you say "unjust".
MR. YAMAGUCHI: And this is just my opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 'Cause those are some very strong comments.
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MR. YAMAGUCHI: And that's, that's true. And, you know, like I said, Council Member, I've
been here for ten years. I think I've testified once before just so that--and that was just to
get a feel for what people have to go through. This is the first time that I feel so strongly
about it and, and this is the reason why, is that I've worked with, I've read, as you just
read, the study by USGS saying, they're saying, okay--I mean I can't even pronounce
these words. So I'm not . . .(inaudible). . .to make this stuff up, their finding and
objective professionals, you know, that there's pharmaceuticals, anticonvulsants,
antibiotics coming out in the water from the injection wells. Okay. Meghan Dailer, I've
worked with her, she's saying that it's the same thing and it's contributing to the algae
blooms, killing our reefs and, and you know, it ties into the marine life, the fish, right. As
I said, if there's a misuse of funds and if there's a lawsuit or anything like that--this is
what I fear--Congress will. . .do you think Congress is gonna give us any further money
at least especially for this, number one? Number two, is that we already have all these
strong studies. You know, and I can. . .I can't prove, I can show you where Steve Dollar
has, he's already found that injections wells aren't a problem. Environment Hawaii has
written about him, you know. So he would come back, you know, and it could be
pointed to, to say we don't have a problem. And, you know, Councilmember
Kaho`ohalahala was so. . .and I, I appreciate that he was so concerned during the Budget
Session with West Maui, right, but they. . .the, the EPA ordered monitoring, testing,
et cetera. Now we can just use, hire this consultant or use the studies here to say, look,
there's not a problem. And based upon his history and pattern, he's going to find that
there's little or no problems with injection wells.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Jock. You've certainly answered my, my
question. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Molina. Any other questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Yama..., Jock for
being here. Appreciate your passion and certainly you point out some very important
things. Few questions. When was the grant received?
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Okay. We're talking two years between Washington D.C., Honolulu, and
Maui. So, you know, I'm going to take a quick peek a notes. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I looked at the copy in the binder-MR. YAMAGUCHI: Here you go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and it says 2008 application, but when did we actually get the
money?
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Here you go. . . .Excuse me, one second. Okay, here. It was. . .we
actually got a press release from Congresswoman Hirono--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: --and this was June 28, 2008, okay, announcing the approval. We're
talking the Federal budget-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: --which this was a small piece of it. Okay. So, so in answer to your
question, June 28, 2008, and then from there it took awhile because it had to go
through. . .the President to sign and then from there, months later, it went to NOAA, the
Federal agency in Oahu to accept and hold and distribute the funds to the County. But
they required, NOAA required a request for the grant from Environmental Management
in order to get the funds released, which they did and I have a copy of, and that's when
things went astray from the main objective--at least that Michelle Anderson had. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I have read the documents and I have also looked at the
contract, and I understand the concern about the grant, I mean the contract being different
from the grant. Based on your, your research and your opinions, what do you think we
should do with this contract?
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Well, thank you for the question. You know, this is a difficult one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's why we're, I'm asking.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Yes. You know. . .and, you know, if you look at the contract, there is
what's called a "termination clause", okay, and it's basically anything that would be
beneficial to the County. . .that we can terminate it. So, I would--but the Council can't do
that, as, as you know. I mean my, my, my layperson recommendation would be for this
Committee to either by resolution or a strong letter asking that the, this contract be
terminated per the contract provisions and by a specific deadline so that the consultant
doesn't incur more cost, okay, and pay, pay whatever he's done thus far and, and
terminate it. And if not, you know, this, this Council to me, in my opinion, has been one
of the most bold and courageous councils that I've been associated with, from Molina
and his plastic bags, cell phone, et cetera, you know, to Danny and the TAT and, you
know, Wayne Nishiki with everything. . .(chuckle). . . and with Joe Pontanilla with the
Budget, you know-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Yamaguchi-MR. YAMAGUCHI: It would be this--real quick-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Yamaguchi--
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MR. YAMAGUCHI: --I'll fmish up. It would be this-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --answer the question.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: --the recommendation-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: --if that, if they don't terminate it, would per your powers to do an
investigation of the contract procurement process just to find out what's going on--not,
not a witch hunt, but just to get answers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I appreciate your answer. And definitely
this Committee will be looking at our options. Thank you.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any other questions, Members? Okay. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Jock, for your presence here
and, and bringing this to our attention. I just have a question about your statement for the
fact that this was intended to look for immediate solution. So can you help me
understand the distinction between what you think the contract is doing in terms of doing
more studies versus what you intend, what you think the, the funding was intended for in
terms of immediate solution?
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Good question. Thanks, Sol. . . .This is two years ago, but I remember
working with Michelle, right, and, and discussing this and discussing it even via e-mail
and mostly with the phone with Mazie's office, and Michelle adamantly felt that we have
enough studies, okay, Meghan Dailer, Russell Sparks and, and now further have come
out. So she said, you know, we don't need further studies, okay. And even assuming,
which Environmental Management has said and I agree, there's, there's other factors that
may be involved, Russell Sparks' find, at least Russell Sparks has said that there's, it's a
40 percent cause of the algae and the problems in the nearshore water. Okay. But what
I'd say is this, is that it's not to do further studies, it's to find an immediate solution.
Okay. We don't need to know. . .or, well, that's not what the money is to be used for.
It's to say, hey. . .and in fact I think Mr. Taylor had mentioned an--he would know better,
okay--an engineering study or report on what it would take to do a pocket plant for the
Maalaea condos as an alternative, possible alternative. Okay. So that's what we're
saying is an immediate alternative to the injection wells is 10, I believe, 10 or 11, 10
private injection wells in Maalaea, yeah, that. . .from the condos, yeah. So it would be to
study that, which the EPA in the '70s allowed back then, and they're really shallow
compared to the deep municipal injection wells. So it would be to find a solution for that
problem specifically. You know, another day, another amount of money if you want to
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do the big picture, but Michelle, after working with Pam Daoust and Mazie Hirono, was
very specific, Maalaea condos. And one option was a pocket plant, but there may be
more. That'd be up to the experts.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you then. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I don't have any.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Yamaguchi, for your testimony this morning.
MR. YAMAGUCHI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, next we have Mr. Tom Royer--I'm hope I'm pronouncing that
right--and he's also testifying on IM-31, and he'll be testifying. . .representing himself.
Mr. Royer, good morning.
MR. ROYER: Aloha.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Aloha.
MR. ROYER: I'm Tom Royer, a permanent resident of Maalaea, and I'm an Americus
Professor of Oceanography at the University of Alaska Fairbanks and Old Dominion
University. I currently serve on several national science panels and review tens of
proposals dealing with marine science per year, and I've read the proposed plan by
Dr. Dollar and others and would like to offer my comments on, on it to you.
Basically, there are three components of the proposed study. There's a mapping, mixing,
and hydrology, hydrography, I'm sorry, component. The mapping component uses
remotely sensed data and it' probably the strongest component of the study, and it's
trying to look at the historical data to look at the change in the, in the reef structure, both
the, the biology and the, and the geological formation. But it's unclear as to how
extensive the past data are, and that was not well discussed in the proposal. The second
component is a two-dimensional study to look at mixing, and it only looks at onshore,
offshore flows and ignores the longshore movements so there's no major things moving
from Maalaea Harbor or Kihei into the reef area. There are also some problems with
assumptions of tidal, wind, and wave mixing, and there's no supporting measurements
included, such as winds, waves, and surf heights. The third component is hydrography,
which is a measurement of salinity and temperature across the, the reef. Unfortunately,
they, they were only going to do a, a few studies of those and those were going to be
during the dry season so that they wouldn't get any offshore flows of water.
Finally, there's no mention of potential source of nutrients that Jock mentioned, the
injection wells, and, and they suggest that they don't need to look at using nitrogen
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isotopes which is the latest technique that can distinguish the, the runoff nutrients from
the, the nutrients that are produced by sewage treatment. My feeling is that the proposed
work will not meet the goals of Maui County's reef study as, as it was proposed. Prior
papers by Russell Sparks and others describe the demise of the Maalaea reef is a complex
problem potentially involving nutrients, invasive algae, sediments, overfishing, winds,
rains, and shoreline development. There are a lot of components in it. The reef is a
poster child for Maalaea and Hawaii, reef degradation, and I think we need to get it right.
We need to sustain our reefs or Maui's economy will be doomed. I do not want to see
this dying reef referred to as the dead reef in the near future. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Royer. Members, is there any need to have any part of
the testimony rephrased? Mr. Kaho`ohalahala, followed by Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Royer. The, the comment
that you made about the lack of use of the nitrogen isotopes, can you explain to us the
significance of such an inclusion in a study?
MR. ROYER: They, they described in, in the proposal how you couldn't distinguish between
the nutrients from agricultural runoff and the human sewage, and that's not a true
statement because the, the recent study has shown that you've been able to distinguish the
nutrients coming out of the, for example, the Lahaina Wastewater Treatment Facility
from the runoff in the pineapple fields over in Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So the, the. . .what you're suggesting is
that then they should include the, the use of the, the nitrogen isotope then?
MR. ROYER: They, they. . .it's reasonable. If you're going to investigate the injection wells,
which of course they didn't mention, it's reasonable to try to separate the nutrients that
come from the injection wells from the nutrients that come from the runoff.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then the nitrogen isotope then will be
placed as, as a tracer element then within the, the wells itself? How does that-MR. ROYER: No, actually-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --how does that work?
MR. ROYER: . . . (chuckle). . . It's a little bit-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Very simply, how does that work?
MR. ROYER: It, it works. And .. (chuckle). . .I think the experts are in the audience here.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
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MR. ROYER: I'd like to defer to them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate that.
MR. ROYER: They can describe that better than I. But no, it doesn't involve any injection of,
of isotopes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning and, and thank you for coming. In other words,
you're saying that the RFP as written by the County is a concern for you because it would
not really address many of the important concerns that you have raised?
MR. ROYER: I'm sorry, I must have misspoke. I find nothing wrong with the RFP, the request
for the proposals, the outline and the goals that were there. But this particular proposal
does not satisfy those goals or would meet those goals.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The proposal as submitted by the County?
MR. ROYER: As, as submitted by Dr. Dollar.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, as submitted by Dr. Dollar-MR. ROYER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in a previous study?
MR. ROYER: Yes. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. ROYER: Generally the terminology I use is an RFP, a request for proposals and then the,
the scientists responds with a proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. ROYER: Okay. And, and that proposal, his proposal, the Dollar proposal will not meet the
goals that were specified in the RFP.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The one that Mr. Dollar who the Committee, who the County
has basically chosen is a shoddy proposal that doesn't address the RFP?
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MR. ROYER: Yes. I would. . .I, I guess out of the proposals that I've reviewed, probably
hundreds of proposals in the last five years, I would put it in the lower third.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Royer, for your testimony this morning.
MR. ROYER: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Testifying next is Pam Daoust, and she'll be testifying on behalf of the
Maalaea Community Association. Ms. Daoust, good morning.
MS. DAOUST: Good morning. Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. DAOUST: I am Pam Daoust and I am testifying on MCA's behalf where I chair the
Environmental Committee. As you know, we were instrumental in getting this grant that
has been awarded to Marine Consultants, Inc. We are concerned that the scope of the
work in this contract does not meet the five goals listed in the original bill that were
sponsored by Congresswoman Mazie Hirono. And we ask that the Coral Reef Grant
Project be rescinded, that contract be rescinded and be rebid.
Attached to my testimony are copies of the original, as submitted by former
Councilwoman Michelle Anderson, and it very well outlines the goals and reasons for our
initial request. The contract under review today does not meet those goals. The bulk of
the money will be used to construct maps of Maalaea Bay reef properties using satellite
data. This is hardly useful when we already know that Maalaea's once abundant
reefs--described in 1972 as "striking in their diversity and in the presence of rare coral
species"--by 2007 had declined to less than 8 percent coral coverage. This mapping the
bay will not tell us what's causing the decline or what to do about it.
Now few would argue that our injection wells at Maalaea that were developed in the '70s
haven't played a part in reef decline. But we do note that a 1993 study, nearly 20 years
after the condominiums were built, there were still 50 to 75 percent coral coverage.
Without the right kind of testing, carefully designed testing, there is no way of knowing
the full extent of impacts from either injection wells or other likely factors, such as runoff
into the bay and nearby agricultural uses, and the damage done by the construction of the
Maalaea Triangle.
In our meetings with the County, we repeatedly urged sticking to the original goals and
evaluating and defining point and nonpoint sources of pollution and possible solutions.
That's goal no. 3 in the original grant. Tests do now exist that can determine exactly
what's gone wrong in Maalaea Bay and the data from those could be used to tell us
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what's happening elsewhere. Such tests can pinpoint nitrogen sources that cause invasive
algae blooms.
We also wonder if the lawsuits pending against the County for its own injection wells
have affected this entire process. Obtaining more data exploring the impact of injection
wells might seem detrimental to whatever case the County's mounting on its own
lawsuits. But as we see it, this data could be used to, in an effort to procure State and
Federal funds to reduce our reliance on injection wells and increase our use of recycled
water. Mounting a vigorous, targeted study to obtain more of such data could actually
show good faith on the County's part in seeking resolutions to solve the problem.
This grant offers opportunities to determine all of the contributing factors in the
well-documented reef collapse at Maalaea, the worst on Maui, and explore possible
solutions to restore reef integrity, now and in the future. Let's not waste it. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Ms. Daoust. Members, any questions to rephrase, you need to
rephrase her testimony, please? Any questions? Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Ms. Daoust, for your
testimony. I just needed you to explain the section in your testimony that says, "a
meeting with County officials". Who have you met with in this regard? And, and I'm
trying to make your point about what you're calling condition no. 3.
MS. DAOUST: Yeah. From the very beginning, we were the ones. . .we contact Cheryl Okuma.
We told her we were working on this grant. We told her when the grant was accepted.
We said, let's get together, let's go over it, let's see what's happening. So Cheryl Okuma
was present at, present at those meetings; Dave Taylor was present at those meetings;
Dave [sic] Kresge, Mr. Kresge from that Department; and Kuhea was at a few of the
meetings. And in each one of those, in our discussions with the County, we had. . .from
the very beginning I know Mr. Taylor told us, well, there's not enough money to do
anything here. . . (chuckle). . . and that was the first that kind of shocked us, and then he
suggested other ways of using the money, such as doing a preliminary study for a
packaged sewage treatment plant at Maalaea. But our view was that even if you got a
packaged plant, it still would rely on injection wells, it still wouldn't tell us what
happened to the reef, and it wouldn't cover all those possible solutions or game plan for
fixing that. Here you've got the worst reef collapse on Maui, and nowhere that I know of
in the State of Hawaii have we ever taken such a collapse and said, what happened on this
reef, what do we have to do to fix this, what. . .you know, what's behind this? We
pushed for the nitrogen testing and we said, well, at least we could find out what
happened, come up with a game plan, a broad-based plan to cover these basis and go
from there. That's never been done and it's an opportunity for what we considered a
model project, something that would be, you know, good for the whole State if we could
figure this out, you know, we're on the Whale Sanctuary, it was the year of the reef at the
time we were discussing this. We saw from the very beginning it was two-prong: what
happened, how do we fix it?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: What was the, the result in, after all of your
discussions?
MS. DAOUST: Well, at the very end when it came time to drafting the RFP, we were cut out of
the process. We asked to please be a part of that process to set the goals that were going
to go out for that. We asked to review what came in. We didn't need to know who sent
it in. We just wanted to know what they were and so we could have some input on that.
We had none at that point, and we got the finalized contract and were told, we weren't
even told when it was coming to you guys for approval. It just was rolled on to the, on to
the calendar and, and at that point nothing, nothing further was said to us.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Any other questions from the
Members? Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony this morning. Next to
testify on Item 31 is Ms. Sarah Dyal Freistat. Okay, we only know her as Sarah.
. . .(chuckle). . .

MS. DYAL FREISTAT: . . .(chuckle). . . Good morning-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Good morning.
MS. DYAL FREISTAT: --my name is Sarah Dyal Freistat and I am reading testimony for
former Councilmember Michelle Anderson.
Dear Chair Medeiros and Members: In February 2008, I submitted an Appropriation
Request to Congresswoman Mazie Hirono in order to seek Federal monies to help stop
the degradation of the Maalaea reef Recent studies by USGS, Hawaii Division of
Aquatic Resources and the University of Hawaii, all showing a causal effect between
injection well effluent and excessive algal growth, were used as justification for the grant
request. Many of you saw the presentations of these studies given to the Council's Water
Resources Committee in 2007.
Congresswoman Hirono submitted our request and the U.S. House Appropriation
Committee approved it in June 2008. On March 11, 2009, the President approved the
Fiscal Year 2009 Omnibus Appropriations bill.
The intended objection, objective of the grant money was to produce a feasibility study on
an alternative sewage disposal proposal for the Maalaea area, eliminating the need for
injection wells and fully recycling the wastewater for area irrigation. This proposal
could then be used to seek Federal money to assist in the construction of such a facility.
As clear, clearly stated in the grant request to Congress, the first goal of the project was:
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"1.

Define an immediate solution for alternative disposal of wastewater and domestic
sewage from onshore cesspools, septic tanks, and injection wells based on
scientifically quantified studies already conducted over 8 years."

The National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) was appointed as fiscal agent
for the grant, and the County's Department of Environmental Management was listed to
receive the funds for grant dispersal. In June 2009, NOAA requested DEM to submit a
grant proposal for the monies.
It appears the grant proposal submitted by DEM changed the objective of the original
appropriation request from defining an immediate solution to further study of the bay.
The RFP was issued for this grant states as its, as its project outcome:
"The anticipated outcome of the project is a study that details current Maalaea
reef conditions that examines closely all the potential factors that may be
affecting Maalaea Bay's reef health ..."
The resulting contract issued in March 2009 will produce a benthic habitat map for
Maalaea Bay using remote sensing imagery. It will also produce a study of the
groundwater/surface water input to the bay. While it may provide more scientific data on
the deterioration of the bay, it does nothing to provide a remediation plan or an
immediate solution for alternative disposal of wastewater.
It appears the DEM and the contract they approved are using the grant money to
question the studies that were presented to Congress in order to receive the
appropriation. The studies were substantial enough to convince myself,
Congresswoman Hirono, and Congress, that an immediate solution should be found for
an alternative disposal of Maalaea wastewater.
With only 8 percent coral cover left in Maalaea Bay, more studies of its degrade...,
degrading reef might just study it to death.
I'm hoping you can find a way to refocus this contract to its intended purpose. Sincerely,
Michelle Anderson, former Councilmember, South Maui.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo for your testimony. Members, any questions for Ms. Sarah?
Seeing none, thank you once again for your testimony. I'm sorry, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair. Just a request.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could we please have that in writing?
MS. DYAL FREISTAT: You should have it.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We do?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, might.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's in the pile?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: It's in the pile. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's in the pile we haven't had a chance to look at since we got
here this morning.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But thank you because it's important to have that. Thank you.
I'll look for it.
MS. DYAL FREISTAT: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Sarah. Next we have testifying is Teri Leonard, please, and
she'll be testifying on IM-31. And she is testifying on behalf of the DIRE Coalition
which she is a member of.
MS. LEONARD: Aloha and good morning. Thank you for listening to our words today. My
name is Teri Leonard, I am. . .I manage Maui Dreams Dive Company in Kihei. I chair
the Reef Committee for South Maui Sustainability; and I'm also a member of DIRE and
that is who I'm speaking for today is the Don't Inject Redirect Coalition.
There's two points that I'm concerned about. One is that this contract wants to study the
entire bay. It states in the contract the reason is is because only two sites were shown to
be degraded in the bay and the propo..., and the contract says, oh, we must look at the
whole bay to determine if there's a problem. According to Clean Water Act, that's not
true. If any coral is degraded, any reef system is degraded, that's enough right there. So,
I just wanted to point that out. We don't need to study the entire bay to know we have a
problem.
If we do any more studies, they should focus on finding the sources of the pollution and
quantifying it so that we know the magnitude and the location of the problem sources.
Stable isotope studies can indicate to what extent the problems caused by sewage sources
and to what extent by fertilizer runoff. And I would also be interested to know what the
effect of the aquarium is having on that, that reef, you know. As Ms. Daoust pointed out,
things have changed dramatically in recent years and those injections well for those
condos have been there a long time. So something has happened to change this.
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I would like to point out a little or tell you a little story quickly here, when about a year
ago I met a gentleman who said he was maintaining, he was doing a maintenance contract
for some of these injection wells at Maalaea condos. And he didn't say which ones, but
he said that the, the. . .such minimal treatment, that the water was still brown as it was
going into the well, and that it's only 40 feet deep. So that's pretty shocking. I was very
excited when I saw that this grant was being issued to help solve the problem there, and
now I see that that money is not to be used for, for solving that problem.
So, I think this is, this is extremely important for you to look at. The intention of seeking
Federal funding for a study of the waters at Maalaea Bay was to indentify nutrient
sources in the bay with the intention of recommending solutions to decrease nutrient
sources and to give the reefs, give the area's reefs and water quality a chance to recover.
We ask, the DIRE Coalition asks that you please carefully review the contract to
determine if it does meet the objectives of the original proposal. The Committee should
recommend that the Administration invalidate this contract and issue a new request for
proposal that actually meets the needs of the community and seeks to advance solutions
for the water quality issues faced by Maalaea Bay.
And I would like to mention, very quickly, that I know other proposals were submitted
that were a little bit more logical, I think Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Ms. Leonard, for your testimony. Members, any questions
for the testifier at this time? Seeing none, once again thank you for your testimony.
MS. LEONARD: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next testifying on IM-31 is Ms. Irene Bowie, and she is testifying on
behalf of the organization she belongs to, Maui Tomorrow.
MS. BOWIE: Good morning, Chair and Council Members. I'm Irene Bowie, Executive
Director of Maui Tomorrow Foundation, also a member of the DIRE Coalition, and a
member of the Mayor's Wastewater Community Working Group. As has already been
stated, Councilmember Anderson submitted a Fiscal Year 2009 Appropriation Request
Form that required her to provide specific objectives, including how the monies would be
used, before Federal funds could be approved and released.
She cited recent studies by University of Hawaii which strongly suggest that elevated
nutrients from wastewater are fueling accelerated algal growth which smothers the reef.
The appropriation request form contains specific language describing the goals of the
proposed project, including an immediate solution for alternative disposal of wastewater
and domestic sewage from onshore cesspools, septic tanks, and injection wells based on
scientifically quantified studies already conducted over eight years. And an evaluation of
alternative means for disposal as a tool of long, longer-term planning.
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Upon receiving the funds, Environmental Management was required by NOAA's Oahu
office to submit a grant request. This request completely changed the object..., objective
from defining an immediate alternative to the injection wells to now conducting more
evaluations, testing, and mapping, and it refutes the UH study, a scientific study that was
deemed sufficient and sound by both Congresswoman Hirono and
Councilmember Anderson.
Maui Tomorrow has concerns with the contract, the RFP and procurement process, and
asks this Council to send a letter to Mayor Tavares urging the Administration to terminate
the contract by a specific deadline; and refer this contract to the appropriate committee
(preferably Committee of the Whole) to thoroughly investigate both the contract and the
procurement process used by Environmental Management in awarding the contract to
Marine Research Consultants. This Council has an obligation to our community to ask
hard questions and assure the public that Federal monies are spent as intended in order to
prevent potential lawsuits and avoid inquiries back to Congresswoman Hirono's office
which could potentially jeopardize future Federal funding for Maui County.
I've submitted my testimony which has specifics in, in what we would like this
investigation to cover--you should all have copies of that--and I would just comment that
the lowest bid isn't necessarily the best bid. As was mentioned before in the May issue
of Environment Hawaii, Mr. Dollar's research in the Lahaina situation was, was doubted.
It says that his, his studies now carry little weight. Other, along with Mr. Royer, other
statist..., statisticians and ecologists have looked at the study, the, the proposal--excuse
me--that, Mr. Dollar is submitting for this Maalaea work and find it really lacking. So, I
think you've gotta also have quantity and quality along with the lowest bid. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Ms. Bowie. Any questions for the testifier, Members?
Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Irene, for, for
your testimony this morning. I wanted to just get a little bit more information. You said
that you serve on the Wastewater Community Working Group.
MS. BOWIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Were you involved in any of the discussions
concerning this particular potential grant funding?
MS. BOWIE: No. No, nothing like this comes up in our community working groups. Not. . .I
mean really it's, it's really frustrating. We've had the situation at Kahului with the
replacement wells, and that didn't come up because of the lawsuit with the Kihei Plant;
we can't discuss that. Because of the EPA order for Lahaina Wastewater Plant, we can't
discuss that. We could've discussed Maalaea, but we never have. You know, the main
message we get in the community working group is that there's no money to do anything.
But this was money and there's other sources of money, and if we could all be creatively
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looking at funds to do reuse, we might be moving ahead in this. And we are killing our
main tourist attraction, our reefs. And this study was also going to help to look at the
situation with the decline of coral reefs throughout the State. I mean we could've come
with some evidence that could help us not only for Maui County, but for the entire State.
So it's sad and frustrating.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Who facilitates this working group?
MS. BOWIE: The Department of Environmental Management. And we have a facilitator that's
hired to come over from Oahu, you know, but it's basically Environmental Management
that runs the working group meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then in your, in your testimony you
talk about an RFP and a procurement process that you said perhaps has not been--are you
suggesting it was not properly engaged or followed?
MS. BOWIE: Well, I think that we would like to look at that. We'd like to look at who all bid
on this, what their qualifications were rather than just going with Mr. Dollar and, and his
work. And again, I mean I've said this once before, but I would not be at all surprised if
when Environmental Management finally does the study at Lahaina, it will be Marine
Research Consultants doing that study too. Because if, if you give the evidence that
that. . .you know, they want and you're the lowest bidder, it's kind of a done deal and it
doesn't serve the public.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate your comments.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Bowie, for being here. And I
guess one of the questions that we're going to be asking is the process in regards to RFP.
I, I just have a fast question for you. In regards to your working committee, have the
working committee take a look at what's in the Maui Island Plan in regards to reuse as
well as elimination of injection wells?
MS. BOWIE: At, at Maalaea?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maalaea as well as Kihei, Kahului, and Lahaina.
MS. BOWIE: No. In, in the beginning of our working group meetings, we did have a
wastewater 101 kind of an overview for folks, and it talked a little bit about the R-1, the
reuse lines, at Kihei and Lahaina. But, you know, went, went over that very quickly and
we haven't gone back to it, and I think the fact that we have not really talked in any depth
about needing an R-1 line at Kahului, especially with HC&S now looking at biofuels.
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And as we all know the, the division in this community over water, that if we, if we could
be using almost 8 million gallons a day that's going into Kahului Bay and to the
detriment of the bay, if we could turn that around and use most of that for agricultural
crops, it's such a win-win and Federal funding. As we look at this, the Federal
government is looking to help fund that project. So if we, none of us say that this is an
immediate solution, we all know, but if we just felt like the Department was going in that
direction and we could all be trying to find, you know, solutions that would work.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I agree with you 100 percent, and it, it's just a
matter of who's going to champion this thing to get those Federal dollars to do a
complete study for Maui County. So thank you.
MS. BOWIE: And we would love to work with whoever will do that. . . . (chuckle). . . Thank
you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Member Pontanilla. Any other questions, Members?
Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you. You mentioned briefly the concern about
Steve Dollar. Are there specific circumstances that you have a concern specifically?
MS. BOWIE: Well, as I mentioned the Environment Hawaii article that states back in the '92
study for Lahaina and that now, today his, his findings carry little weight. That's a quote
directly out of the article. Also, if you look at the contract for the Maalaea study on
page 2, it says the consultant did a, preliminary site visit in October '09 and already
states that algae was not a problem, problem consistent throughout the bay. Then on
page 9 the consultant states that, groundwater is not saline and, therefore, will rise up
and float above the saline ocean water, thereby having little or no impact on marine life.
So this consultant has already made a preliminary site visit and appears to have made key
determinations, number one, that algae is not a significant or consistent problem in the
bay; and, number two, that wastewater from the injection wells may have little or no
impact on marine life in the bay. And again, this goes completely against what
Councilmember Anderson and Congresswoman Hirono were, were looking for this
money to help solve that problem. So if you, if you've discounted the problem already in
the preliminaries, then what hope is there of this being an effective study? So again, we
just really ask that you ask the Mayor to terminate this contract and let's start over again
and get valuable information out of this.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I, I would look at these two areas that Irene has brought out as
a good reason why it goes contrary to the contract and, you know, statements made here
already in this preliminary study. I think Environmental Management needs to be asked
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that question as to how they can defend what was set out in the original documents sent
out by Michelle and if it seems to be contrary. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank
you, Irene.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo. Yeah. Mahalo, Mr. Nishiki. And, and certainly all of that will
be discussed when we deliberate on this. Mahalo for your testimony this morning,
Ms. Bowie.
MS. BOWIE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: A question for you. Do we have personnel from Finance
coming here this morning?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We did not make that request. We didn't know there was a connection.
You're talking about the contract part?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, to find out.. .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .the process.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. We didn't, we didn't request for them to attend. But if we need to,
we can see if they can send a representative.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. If we can make contact, it would be beneficial.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Pontanilla. Okay. Next testifying on IM-3 1 is
Ms. Kai Nishiki and she'll be testifying on her own behalf. Ms. Nishiki, good morning.
MS. NISHIKI: Good morning, Council Chair or Committee Chair and Council Members. I am
testifying on behalf of Item, IM-31. I chose to stay on Maui and raise my children on
Maui for many reasons. One reason is to be able to raise my children in a healthy, safe
environment where we can go to the beach, swim, surf, and dive as often as possible.
I've been keeping up with the BP oil spill and seeing the devastation and destruction to
the lives of many people, businesses, the tourist industry, and the environment has
made. . .and the environment has made--sorry--and I see the parallels here on Maui. Our
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keiki swim in these waters, we feed our families the fish that we catch from the ocean,
and our economy is dependent on tourist to come here to enjoy our beaches. In a recent
Maui News article on injection wells, there is a picture showing white sands, blue skies,
and clear waters. I believe that we have our own disaster happening, but it is far more
insidious. What lurks within our waters? Many studies have already been shown and
telling us exactly what is being released into our ocean. My personal experience is that I
took my kids to the west side to go to the beach, and within a couple of days she had a
full-blown staph infection, sores on her face, boils on her body--she's going to be
embarrassed that I'm telling, telling you this--and she even had boils that were so painful
on her okole that she couldn't even sit down. I urge the County Council to take action to
protect the health and safety of our residents and visitors. Investigate this contract and
put into action a plan to end the use of injection wells here in our County. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Ms. Nishiki. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased? Seeing none, thank you once again for your testimony.
MS. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Next testifying on IM-31 is Ms. Lucienne deNaie, and she'll be testifying
on behalf of Sierra Club Maui. . .and I'm not sure what the abbreviation of the second
committee is. . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. deNAIE: Maui group. . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Good morning.
MS. deNAIE: Good morning, Mr. Medeiros, and thank you for chairing this Committee. Good
morning, Committee Members. Nice to see you all. Of course, this hearing today is
about checks and balances, and I want to preface this by saying that while the
Administration does a good job in taking care their part of our decision making here, the
Council is here to be the watchdog and to make sure that if something could be better, it
is made better. I want to say that we've waited a long time to seek a solution for what's
happening in Maalaea.
The Sierra Club has been involved in this area long before my time. In fact,
Ms. Lesley Bruce and her family carried the ball back in the '70s and '80s when many of
the problems that we're dealing with today were sort of set in motion. The bottom line is
we have a development that was approved that had no proper infrastructure for
wastewater. A private system was put in. The individual condos of which there was 400
only have really tried to keep on top and be in compliance, but they inherited a, a system
that aged and there just was never enough funding to make it right. We know that it is
part of the problem there. How do we know? Well, back in 1993 to '96 when the
community plan was being discussed for the Maalaea area, the Kihei-Makena
Community Plan, 800 acres was proposed for urbanization and ultimately approved there
in order to do one thing, and that was to get a sewage treatment plant that all the Maalaea
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condos could hook into. And if you don't believe me, ask former Mayor Arakawa 'cause
he chaired that committee and he told me directly that that's why he supported those 800
acres being urbanized. Now we have plans for some of that acreage, the Jesse Spencer
project, to have a new private sewage treatment plant, and another 1,000 people will be
left holding the bag for that. We really need to deal with the situation we have here.
Mr. Pontanilla, your question about the Maui Island Plan. There's very strong language
in the Maui Island Plan about how we need to move towards reusing the water. There's
very strong language in the West Maui, South Maui, and Central Maui Community Plans
right now that have already been adopted that says exactly the same thing. This study is a
great first step. We need to get the Federal government involved. It is beyond the
capacity of these private homeowners to do something about this, and it's probably
beyond the, the capacity of the County who were told back in the '70s, oh, approve this
and everything will be alright because we have all private infrastructure and it won't be
your problem. Well, now it is our problem. We know there's a problem there. We need
a study that actually addresses it and works towards the solution.
Please exercise your power to send this back with the intention that a new, that the

contract be terminated and a new proposal be issued. Other folks did put in proposals
and there are some choices here. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo for that testimony. Members, any questions or any need to have
any part of the testimony rephrased?
MS. deNAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Seeing none, Ms. deNaie, thank you for your testimony. Okay. Last to
sign up and if there's anyone else wanting to give testimony that have not signed up, you
can go outside the doors in the lobby and you can be signed up for it. But this is the last
person who signed up for, to give testimony this morning, and Ms. Robin Knox. She'll
be testifying on IM-31 and she is testifying on her behalf. Good morning.
MS. KNOX: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Council. Thank you for allowing us to
speak with you on this matter. As I think many of you know, I am an environmental
consultant with 25 years experience in Clean Water Act and water pollution control. I am
also a researcher with the University of Hawaii who participated in writing the
publications that you've heard referenced that show the evidence of damage and impact
and, and in fact the locations and sources causing these damages and impacts to our reefs.
I would like to disclose so that there's no misunderstanding that I was party to two
separate proposals on this contract, and basically propose the same approach with both of
those parties.
And so my comments--I have four comments--one was to let you have that disclosure to
know my experience and my involvement. The second is on process. I think that we
don't want to, you know, bash Dr. Dollar too badly. . . (chuckle). . .because I can relate to
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him. I'm a consultant, he's a consultant. Consultants do what their clients need. The
problem here is the scoping, and if it was scoped properly, there would be a lot more
checks and balances and assurances on the contractor that was selected. And I think
much of the problem is not the contractor, but the scope of work. During the scoping
process there was not any opportunity, as you heard Pam say, for the public to participate,
neither was there opportunity for, for peer review by scientific community So one of the
recommendations I would make, that was made earlier, is take this to the Committee of
the Whole or some other body that can facilitate that scope. And Dave Taylor admitted
to me during this process that we don't know how to do this, we have no experience in
this. And what he meant, I believe, is that the Division of Environmental Management is
in the business of waste management. They are not in the business yet of environmental
management. They're a brand-new agency, only recently formed, and that's
certainly. . .we want them to go in the direction of their name, but they don't, they don't
really have the personnel and experience yet.
So another recommendation that I would make to the Council if you have a way to
outside of this thing with Maalaea is, you know, the County has onboard Brown and
Caldwell, one of the top water resources firms in the country, and they can do things
other than design treatment plants and pumps. Set aside a small amount of money,
10,000 or $20,000. There's probably some as-needed consulting clause that that could be
done under, and get a Clean Water Act expert, like myself, in here to advise the County.
I realize that many people would view me as having a conflict of interest, but I would
really like to see someone who's a Clean Water Act consultant, not a marine scientist.
Everything you've heard so far has been from marine scientists. This is pretty simple.
We know the sources of pollution, they're both point and nonpoint source. They all need
to be reduced. The impacts are clear, it's been proven. End of story, let's get the money,
let's do proposals that show us what the sources are, how much is there, and what are
possible alternatives for solutions. Whatever amount of money we have, we can take a
first stab at that, and maybe we need more and maybe we need to come back. But if
we're not responsible with this, we're not going to get more. And we do need Congress'
help to fund wastewater treatment on this island.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Ms. Knox, for your testimony. Members, any questions or is
there a need to have any part of the testimony rephrased? Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Ms. Knox. You got your testimony
written?
MS. KNOX: No, sir. Unfortunately, I don't have time, I didn't have time with everything that's
been going on.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I. . .well, I was kind of interested in the existing
contractor that does work for the County and your offer in regards to. . .the issue that we
have this morning. And, you know, I'm. . .I, I guess happy to hear that, you know,
nothing wrong with the process, but the scoping of the, the. . .I guess the contract is an
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issue. . . .But, you know, thank you for your comments on, on both, yeah, and, and if we
can. . .maybe chicken scratch, if you have to, a copy of your written. . .of, of your
testimony.
MS. KNOX: I can give you what I wrote down to speak from.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, good.
MS. KNOX: I'd be glad to.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Member Pontanilla. Any other questions, Members?
Member Baisa, followed by Member Kaho`ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you, Ms. Knox, for
being here this morning. I think I heard you say--and, you know, please help me
understand this correctly--that in the scoping of the contract, when we were developing it,
it might have been a good idea to have some kind of a marine scientist help us do that?
MS. KNOX: No. Actually, what I said was you had marine, so far you've heard from marine
scientists. Who you haven't heard from are people who are specialists in pollution
control and regulation, like the Clean Water Act. These homeowners at Maalaea or
condo owners or whoever it is--I'm not even sure who's responsible for the wastewater
treatment plant--but they're facing a huge liability, just like the County is with, with the
County injection wells. The, the big difference that I see is someone who's worked in
these programs for a long time is that they're not recalcitrant, they are trying to solve the
problem, and that's important. And, you know, we need to focus on solving the problem.
We know that there's a problem at Maalaea.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. That's clear. What I'm trying to figure out is who
and what kind of credentials do you think specifically should've been involved in helping
to scope this?
MS. KNOX: Someone who has worked in Clean Water Act Programs, someone who has
perhaps experience either with an agency or many years experience with compliance,
permits, and those kinds of things. Because some of the simplest things that could be
done haven't even been suggested, like why don't we sample the wastewater treatment
plants and see how much pollution's coming from them instead of chasing it around in
the ocean where it's hard to find. . . . (chuckle).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. That's really important. Thank
you.
MS. KNOX: You're welcome.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Robin, for your testimony. I,
I think in a follow-up then, you said that you had spoken to Environmental Management
about the potential need for this kind of expertise. Is that, is that correct in terms of this
project?
MS. KNOX: I don't think I spoke directly to DEM about, about this. I have in the past testified
in a number of venues about the need for the County to have more attention to Clean
Water Act compliance And when I have in the past on different issues spoken to the
County about any number of Clean Water Act compliance issues, when I asked who's
responsible for this particular issue--it might be storm water runoff or it might be runoff
from the landfill or it might be the injection well--I get kind of a blank look is what I get.
And I've been trained as an auditor and when you get blank looks or inconsistent
answers, there's more to be found out there and it's usually something related to the heart
of the problems that you're seeing.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. KNOX: So I, I think we. . .I think, again, it's an evolution of this Division and that there
needs to be more focus on protecting the environment, not just on treating the waste,
because you can treat waste to a certain level, and certainly the County does that. They
do a really good job on many aspects of their waste treatment, but it's not enough to
protect the reefs. So we're not doing enough, it's not getting the job. And it's hard, it's
really. . .it's not, it's gray areas, it's not black and white, and this is also why many
municipalities have the option to bid contracts in a different way. This is not so defined
as like pouring concrete is where we can give the contractor like a whole bunch of
specifications. We need that contractor's help to come up with those specifications or
some expert's help at the County level to come up with those specifications, and then you
can contract it out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I, I thought you said, I heard you say
earlier that you, you had conversations with Mr. Taylor concerning-MS. KNOX: I did. At the time that the RFP was issued, Mr. Taylor expressed to me his
concerns that the County did not have the kind of experience in-house that it takes to do
pollution control and environmental management in this way in looking at the whole
resource. They're used to looking at the treatment plant or the landfill. But now they're
being asked as all municipalities are in this country, and, and this is where Maui's maybe
got behind the schedule somewhere, to look at the impacts of your actions and to protect
and comply with those standards that apply out there in the water, not just the ones that
are the minimum standards at the treatment plant. Yeah, we meet the minimum standard.
But I don't know if you've noticed, this isn't an average ecosystem out there.
. . .(chuckle). . . This is like something really special and demands really high quality
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water and, and special protection. So we may have to do more than other places have to
do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay, I appreciate that. And then I'm not sure if
you were the person that was going to elaborate just a little bit on the nitrogen isotope
tracing. Was that-MS. KNOX: I will do that to the extent that I can. Meghan actually did the research, but I'm
very familiar with the methodology and have used it myself in other research.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So how does that help in terms of, of tracing
then?
MS. KNOX: Um.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And simp..., just simply, so just for my own
understanding.
MS. KNOX: There's, there's. . .like a signature or a profile of nitrogen, and when we analyze
the tissue of the algae that are blooming in the areas near the injection wells, we see the
signature that goes with human sewage. Now there's also one that goes with fertilizer
runoff. So in a different area if we looked, we might see that. At Maalaea, what we see
is actually that kind of interim mixed range signal where we feel that maybe--I know
everyone's tired of studies--but maybe a little bit more study is needed because what we
proposed was to do a series of dilutions looking at both fertilizer and wastewater. And by
the way, we did ask HC&S for some irrigation water, and they would not provide it to us,
and the County will no longer provide us wastewater. So we would like to do this
experiment, but we need fertilizer water and wastewater to do it. But if you did that, you
could figure out what the signals in Maalaea mean and how much of the problem is
attributable due to nonpoint source and how much is due to point source. So that's part
of what we proposed. But also from the pollution control standpoint, you know, I can tell
you they're both contributing factors and they probably both need to be reduced. How
much is a complicated question, and that's where the factors such as that were talked
about earlier, like salinity and wave action and weather, those goes into defining what are
the critical conditions under which problems occur. And so that's, we want to formulate
our control strategy based on that critical set of conditions, that perfect storm, if you will.
But we can start reductions without knowing the answers to all those questions. We
clearly know what we have today is too much.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. I appreciate your, your comments. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Meghan, when you mentioned-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Robin.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, excuse me, Robin. When you mentioned that HC&S and,
and the County refused to give you sampling, what was this study to do? Was this
a. . .and who were you contracted by?
MS. KNOX: With HC&S, we were working on a grant proposal to the Hawaii Coral Reef
Initiative, and we wanted to basically do the same studies on the fertilizer water as, you
know, their fertigation as what we did on the sewage effluent, the injectate that goes into
the injection wells. So we wanted to basically repeat the same study but with a fertilizer
source, because a lot of the comments I hear in the press are very well-founded that it's
not just point source as it is nonpoint source, too. And this is, in fact, what I do is come
up with plans to address both. That's what a Clean Water Act scientist does.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and the County? The County also refused?
MS. KNOX: The County refused-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For what study?
MS. KNOX: After our paper was published, the County refused to give us any wastewater on
advice of their counsel by which, I believe, they meant their attorneys. Not this Council
or the County Council, but-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The legal attorney?
MS. KNOX: --the legal counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Also, you mentioned that you got a blank look from
County authorities into some of the concerns that you've had. Did they ask you for your,
have they ever asked you for your help?
MS. KNOX: No, I don't think they have. And I think that, in fact, they often misinterpret my
help. When I come before you and I say somebody's going to sue the County, I'm not
threatening to sue you. I am advising you, as I would if I were your paid consultant, that
you have liabilities because of the actions that have been taken and the actions that have
not been taken. Because like I said, a big thing is to show the EPA that you are not
recalcitrant, you are doing everything in your power to make this right, and that goes a
long way toward reducing penalties. And not only that, if there were penalties, if you're
not recalcitrant, you can often get those penalties put into beneficial projects that are not
related. For instance, what's often done is a point source, nonpoint source tradeoff. The,
the penalties can go into a local supplemental environmental project as long as it's not
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something required by law. So, for instance, HC&S is not required by law to build a
reuse line. But if there were a reuse line, maybe they would reuse some of that water.
And perhaps if the County did get fined, they are. . .or, or the Maalaea condo owners got
fined, some of those monies, if you're not recalcitrant, if you're trying to solve the
problem, can actually be put towards solving the problem, like putting in a reuse line. It
can't be used towards doing something like putting in treatment that's required by law
anyway, but it can be used for something not required by law that would help solve the
problem.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Which brings to, to my question, Mr. Chairman. Because you
did say the concern about liability, not just recently, but earlier in your statements, are
you aware of any laws that we may be breaking?
MS. KNOX: Uh. . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Before you answer, Members, be sure to keep this to the study-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --okay, so we're not getting off-track or possibly treading on, you know,
thin lines as far as the Sunshine Law. So keep it to what is in the study. Go ahead,
Ms. Knox.
MS. KNOX: Thank you, Chair. And I can answer that specifically in terms of the Maalaea
study as one example. We have clear evidence that the water quality standards of the
State of Hawaii are not being attained due to the presence of macroalgal blooms that are
causing impairments to the coral reef which impairs the fishery. So the fact that those
conditions exist in themselves violate State water quality standards. The injection wells
by virtue of worldwide literature and work done on Maui are clearly implicated as one of
the sources of nutrients that are causing that problem. So anyone that--the Clean Water
Act says that you cannot discharge pollutants to waters of the U.S. from a point source
without a national pollutant discharge elimination system permit. The County currently
does not hold those permits for any injection wells and neither do the Maalaea condo
owners. In the past, there was somewhat of a regulatory loophole because the
underground injection of sewage effluent was not regulated directly under the Clean
Water Act. It was instead regulated under the Safe Drinking Water Act, and so all of the
permit limits and conditions were designed to protect drinking water sources. And in fact
in Hawaii, you're not even allowed to inject water in the center of the island where those
drinking water resources are, and that policy inadvertently pushed all the injection wells
to the coastline where they're actually more damaging. So in those injection wells they
weren't being regulated by Clean Water Act. But now because of Meghan Dailer's work
with the algae, we have that nexus. We can, we can show, and the USGS work showed it
also, the effluents are reaching the surface waters. This now makes them subject to the
Clean Water Act, clearly. And so there are now new permits required that need to be
dealt with, and those permits have something in them that Safe Drinking Water Act
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permits don't, and that is a requirement for water quality-based permitting. It means you
have to limit things at the end of pipe so that they don't violate the State water quality
standards in the ocean. And I said, we already know they're being violated, we could
very easily get loading from point sources by sampling, and we can start reducing today.
We don't have to have all the answers. And Clean Water Act is what's being violated,
but it is more than a statutory commanding control kind of program, it's more than
pollution control. It's also water quality management. So it's adaptive management, it
recognizes that we're going to come back and revisit these questions, and this is why I'm
encouraging us to use these monies wisely to get a good understanding of the problem
and to move towards solutions. We can go back and go into more detail later with
additional funds if we do a good job of defining the problem with these.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and thank you so much, Mr. Chairman. I think that. . .I
don't think it's irresponsible, it could be naivetivity [sic]. But, you know, we. . .time and
time we hear officials saw we're not breaking, breaking any laws, and here today is a
specific concern. I think that we here in the Council as policymakers should. . .breathe
this in and make our minds really question where we are going if--and I'm not saying that
this Administration is really setting the policy. But I'm concerned that when we set
policy, that Administration adheres to this concern. And, for me, I feel in this area this
Administration is setting a policy that is really going to get us in trouble.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so we really need to examine this and-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. I think-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --when they come up today-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in, in what has been spoken. And if they don't know, then
they really need to speak up today.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. And that, that should be when we discuss this item after testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I've waited a long time. And, Ms. Knox, thank you for
being here. I really wanted some clarification because when you first started your
testimony, you said you were a party of two proposals for this particular funding. Am I
correct in saying that?
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MS. KNOX: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that you, you understood your proposals along
with this proposer, proposal. . .based upon the scope. And that, that's what I want
clarification, who sets the scope? I guess that's my question because I'm getting. . .I,
I've heard a whole bunch of testimony and I, I'm trying to pinpoint where, if at what
point this process has gone awry, if it's gone awry, and how do we get it back to where
we want it to, because I've heard proposals from many organizations, including the
former Councilmember Michelle Anderson, which I have great respect for. But I'm
asking you, can you tell me what, why the proposals and were your proposals very
similar to this and why the scope is what, what we should be focusing on?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Ms. Knox?
MS. KNOX: I, I think the scope in the development specifically of the request for proposals, it
very generally presented objectives and didn't really say things like you have to look on
land for the sources of pollutants. It also was not specific as to the qualifications, I don't
think, of the consultant to say that it had to be a firm that had pollution control experience
or regulatory compliance experience. So, I think those were two things. But the RFP,
that is set by Division of Environmental Management, is my understanding, and I know
because I've been an environmental engineering project manager for a $2 million coastal
island restoration, and I know that when we wrote our RFPs, we had to consider them
very carefully if we wanted to get back, especially if it was a competitive bidding
process. If you want to get back the stuff that's really going to do the job, you have to
kind of be tight in your scoping. And so that's what I kind of perceive because both the
proposals that have features that many people have supported today and the proposal that
was awarded fit within the RFP pretty well because it was a little broad and general. And
so I'm suggesting that there be some public discussion perhaps with the Council,
Committee of the Whole, or whatever the appropriate body is. . .so both public review
and scientific peer review of what should be done with this money, and then the. . .that,
that would give Division of Environmental Management the support they need, that Dave
expressed to me that there were kind of at a loss of how to more narrow the scope-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Ms. Knox, yeah, you already presented that, and I think you
answered the question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And I just wanted to know how the scoping was
being done and who-MS. KNOX: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You've answered that question. And thank you very
much. Thank you, Chair. I mean, I think that's what I wanted the clarification more,
more. I won't go into discussion because we'll wait that at, at a proper time.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Knox. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo. Mr., Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Knox. And first of all,
thank you for your comment, I guess, or expression of empathy for Mr. Dollar, as you are
also involved in that type of work.
MS. KNOX: Uh-huh,
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 'Cause that, that's important for us to remind ourselves as
elected officials. And, and, Mr. Chairman, as we. . .once we get to this matter and
discuss it, that we need to leave the issue of Mr. Dollar's performance out of this because
what we're looking at here is just the use of the money, the original intent and use of the
money because I don't want us to get into any potentially liti..., litigation for maybe
potential slander if we start to, you know, criticize the work that may, may or may not
have evidence. So, I want to personally stay off of that as a Committee Member to, to
discuss this. So thank you very much, first of all, Ms. Knox. And I know you were
involved in another very. . .well-documented issue in South Maui and you lent your
expertise or thoughts on that. And if I--first of all, your, your area of expertise again, if
you could just state it for the record?
MS. KNOX: Clean Water Act compliance and water quality management.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, very good. And I know if I recall, you, you were
originally from New Orleans or the Gulf Coast area?
MS. KNOX: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: My memory's still intact.
MS. KNOX: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And it's, and it's funny how. . .I guess maybe with what's
happening in the Gulf, it helped remind me of where you're from. So, I certainly value
your expertise and, and the parallels with the concerns on marine life and so forth as it
relates to the Gulf Coast and here in Hawaii as well. If I could ask you, can you help
provide us some names down. . .later on down the road as it relates to Clean Water
experts that we, this Committee could consider in the future or share with the
Administration who to look up to? And I, and I certainly appreciate the fact that the
Environmental Management Department is new, and I guess they are looking. . .you
know, they're building themselves up along the way and sometimes you have a lot of
these issues that can be quite complex. So any names that you can share with us right off
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the top of the bat, right off the top as to who this Administration or Council could
consider to. . .?
MS. KNOX: There are a number that are already in the stable of consultants, as it's called in the
business, used by the County. . . . (chuckle). . . CH2M Hill and Brown and Caldwell both
are widely recognized both for water resources, wastewater engineering, and water
quality, mathematical modeling, sampling and analysis, all that goes into that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, very good. Well, thank you. We'll certainly. . .as we
discuss the issue, maybe discuss those names as well. So thank you-MS. KNOX: Right. And there are others that I can provide. Those come to mind because they
are already consultants that the County's familiar with.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Molina. Anyone else? Members, any questions?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony this morning.
MS. KNOX: You're very welcome. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Ms Knox was the last person to sign up to give testimony. At this
time I'll present the opportunity for anyone in the gallery that has not testified yet,
wishing to testify, come forward. And seeing none, Members, without objection, the
Chair would close public testimony at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So ordered.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Members, it's been awhile since we've been, we started the meeting. I
want to give the Members an opportunity for a break, midmorning break. And also
during that break, I want to give a little extra time so some of you can review the
documents that have been placed on your desks this morning where you didn't have any
time. So, Members, without objections, we're going to take a recess. . .and let's
reconvene at 10:55. Meeting in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

10:40 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:55 a.m.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: . . .(gavel). . . The meeting of the Infrastructure Management Committee
is reconvened after our short recess. Thank you, Members, for that recess. And as was
presented earlier in the meeting, we have three items this morning.
ITEM NO. 39: DONATION OF ASPHALT PAVER TO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS (DEPARTMENT OF FACILITY MAINTENANCE, CITY AND COUNTY
OF HONOLULU) (C.C. No. 10-77)

CHAIR MEDEIROS: And we are now at a point of discussing the first item, and this is Item
IM-39, and it's County Communication 10-77. . .our first item this morning. The
Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 10-77, from the Director of
Public Works, transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING
ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF AN ASPHALT PAVER FROM THE
DEPARTMENT OF FACILITY MAINTENANCE, CITY AND COUNTY OF
HONOLULU, TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, COUNTY OF MAUI,
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 3.56, MAUI COUNTY CODE". The purpose of the
proposed resolution is to authorize the acceptance of the donation of a 1983 Blaw-Knox
PF180H Paver from the Department of Facility Maintenance, City and County of
Honolulu.
At this time, I'd like to have the Director of Public Works, Director Arakawa, to provide
an overview of this item. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item, as you noted, pertains to the proposed
donation of an asphalt paving machine from the City and County of Honolulu,
Department of Facility Maintenance. The paver is a 1983 Blaw-Knox PF180H Paver,
and Blaw-Knox is a division of Volvo which manufactures various types of heavy
equipment. Replacement paving machines have already been purchased by the City and
County of Honolulu, thus the 1983 Blaw-Knox PF180H Paver is no longer needed by the
City and County of Honolulu. The proposed donation came about as a result of
discussions between our Highway staff and the Department of Facility Maintenance.
Two of our staff have inspected the paver which is located at the City and County's
Halawa Baseyard, and it is in working condition, although it is 27 years old. We would
be responsible for the shipping costs from Halawa to Maui, and this is estimated to be
approximately $1,000. We intend to use the paving machine to repair smaller sections of
roadway that are currently failing with ruts and potholes. The repair work would help to
prevent further pavement deterioration which can reduce more costly and extensive
pavement reconstruction in the long run. Some potential areas where the paving machine
could be used are also on unpaved areas, poorly paved areas, or some remote roads that
are costly to the County as CIP projects. The paving machine would provide a good
opportunity to train our staff to do resurfacing work. Since we do not have a paver at
present, there will be a learning curve, and we expect that the paving machine can
provide a quality training experience. A resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING
ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF AN ASPHALT PAVER FROM THE
DEPARTMENT OF FACILITY MAINTENANCE, CITY AND COUNTY OF
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HONOLULU, TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, COUNTY OF MAUI,
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 3.56, MAUI COUNTY CODE" has been drafted, and your
review and approval of the proposed resolution is respectfully requested.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Director Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Hashiro, would you like to add any comments to the remarks?
MR. HASHIRO: Not at this time, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Hashiro. Members, now we'd like to open the floor for
any questions. Mr. Victorino, followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Chair, and thank you,
Mr. Arakawa and Mr Hashiro, for being here this morning. Real quickly, I was. . .when
I read the resolution, I noticed a couple of things. Number one, it was a 1983. I would
guess to say about 27 years old. My question to you would be twofold. Number one,
how reliable is this machine? That'd be my first question. Secondly, is there
replacement parts? Because as certain machines or certain years go away, replacement
parts become very difficult for some models. So has that been looked into? Because if
you get something and it cannot be fixed or it goes down, and something that's 27 years
old, I think all of us agree, probability of problems will be more prevalent than something
brand new. And the third question--so I'm giving you a three-part question--the third
question is how applicable for training, as you mentioned, Mr. Arakawa, would a
machine that's 27 years old, if we were to buy something more modern or something
newer, would the training of these machines would be, would it be applicable, you know?
So repair, quality, and as well as replacement of parts is, is all the questions I have.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, Department?
MR. HASHIRO: Councilmember Victorino, first, repair. We do recognize it's an older
machine We have not investigated to whether the parts are available because we don't
know, you know, which parts are needed at this point. We do know the, the paver is
operable. One of our supervisors went over and they're, they were going to run it for us,
but unfortunately, it rained that day so they couldn't actually operate it. We know one
section of the paver is broken, but it doesn't affect its performance What do we have for
replacement parts for that? At this point we don't know. Quality. . .can you-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, when I, when I used the word "quality", I was
referring to the fact that if this machine is down a lot or is broken, or like you say, this
part, part of the machine doesn't work well, how does it affect the pavement? And even
though as you stated, Mr. Arakawa, this is really for do small jobs, kind of interim work
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so that we don't have major damage to an area which costs us much more money to
repair. But how effective would this be with that. . .already knowing that something's
wrong with the machine, whatever it might be? How would that affect the quality of the
work? And then the other part of that was the training. If you're going to train people on
a machine that's obsolete or very old and then you go walking into another machine
that's much more modern, how much of the training would be applicable or do you have
to retrain again? So, I guess it's kind of like where I'm questioning this. I'm not saying
it's not a bad deal, I'm just saying. . .00h, wait a minute, how good is this?
MR. HASHIRO: It's something that provide us a basis to, to. . .train our employees. It's. . .you
know, we understand that some of the newer machines have better bells and whistles.
We priced one machine at about quarter million dollars. You know, that's something we
cannot afford right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. HASHIRO: It's an interim measure at least to get us, our feet wet, you know. It's, like you
said, small jobs. We don't expect quality to be terrific when we first start. It would
pretty terrible in actual..., actuality. You know, it's the learning curve, you know, you
gotta practice in order to get better. You practice on something that has, doesn't have all
the bells and whistles. When you do have a, a machine that has all the bells and whistles,
it's a lot easier.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I, I thank you, Mr. Hashiro, and I thank you,
Chair. I just wanted noted, Mr. Chair, that I would like an answer, and I don't know if
that delays the process, and I hope it doesn't, but I'd like an answer to the question about
replacement parts and that ability because, again, I don't want our County to get stuck
with somebody's, pardon the expression, junk and then we end up not being able to use it
after a year or so and then we gotta junk it and we're stuck with something. So, you
know, Mr. Chair, you was in, in this Department for many years and you understand the
importance of replacement parts. So, I think this is something I would, really would like
an answer before I say yes to something like this. But that's just me, Mr. Chair. I'll let
the other Members ask questions.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Member Victorino. And, Mr. Geers, make a note of that,
and it's so noted in the record and we'll make a request of that. Any other Member?
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr Hashiro,
Mr. Arakawa. I. . .one of the questions I was going to ask was asked already, and that
was the parts. And the concern would be that if we're going to keep this, then the parts
may actually cost them what the machine is currently valued. So that question was
answered. How long do you intend to keep this? I mean. . .well, let me better rephrase
that. How much more life out of this machine do you expect to get, and how much did
City and County use this machine? Was it in constant use? Did you guys ask I mean in
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terms of usage for, what, 27 years? I, I can only imagine maybe over the last couple of
years City and County sort of mothballed it a little bit or, or was it still in use do you
think?
MR. HASHIRO: The machine was still in use. They have, I believe, three pavers and this was
one of the three that they were using. It was in use until the time that they actually
bought the new one.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So can I ask, why did they want to get rid of it?
MR. HASHIRO: Age and because one part wasn't up to their standards.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One part wasn't up to their standards? Okay. And something
of the equivalent would be like $250,000? And, and I want to commend you, first and
foremost, for being resourceful in these difficult times that we're, we're going through.
And, yeah, 250,000 would be a bit of a challenge in these austere times. But when it
comes to our roads, though, you know, our public, you know, they deserve a. . .as good a
road as they can get. And my final question in terms of training. So our, our personnel
right now are training on, I, I presume, the newer equipment for the time being?
MR. HASHIRO: Our personnel right now are not training on any kind of paver. We don't have
any paver in-house. So there's nothing for us to train on.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Wow. So all our County roads then are basically being paved
by private companies then?
MR. HASHIRO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So the intent of this Department then is to get into
paving, then doing the smaller jobs for the long term?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes. I believe this Council has told us in the past that they wanted us to start
this, this program.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. HASHIRO: . . .and we had some objections and we, we. . .and funding was a big issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. HASHIRO: We saw this as an opportunity to at least get started, you know, get your foot
wet, you know, kind of deal, get it started and then, you know, as the economy improves
and we can, you know, afford a new machine, then purchase one at that time.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Yeah. Thank you for refreshing my memory, because
at the time we were down to like just one paving company that basically had a monopoly
on paving. We were paying some really astronomical prices for paving at the time. But
now. . .I guess at a recent Budget meeting we were told that there are now other vendors
out there, that now we're getting some really good prices on resurfacing our roads. So,
okay, that's the end of my line of questioning, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Baisa, followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr Hashiro, for
being here. You know, I understand the concerns of my colleagues. You know, when I
was in the nonprofit world, people sometimes would make a donation that appear to be
really helpful, and then because of its age or whatever shape it was in, it turned into a, a
black hole or, you know, sometimes a white elephant. But I realize that you've probably
been to take a look at this thing or you've had somebody there?
MR. HASHIRO: We had two people look at it. Our Highways Superintendent went to look at it
and our Makawao District Supervisor went to look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. And I trust that, you know, you're satisfied that this will
serve the purpose you want it for, which is to get something here so that we can train
people to eventually look at a. . .probably a new one and doing some of our own work. I,
I've been hearing this ever since I got on the Council four years ago. So it's kind of
exciting to me that we're finally going to have one. If we were to approve this, how long
would it take for this to get here?
MR. HASHIRO: Within a month we'd get it here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And then you could begin the training program right away?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Well, thank you very much and, again, I congratulate you
on finding a solution. You know, it's very difficult when we're trying to do things
without a whole lot of money, and I trust that, you know, you're making a good decision.
Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Baisa. Member Pontanilla, before I go to you, I just
want to welcome the staff from the West Maui Department of Public Works, Highways
Division, that have come over here probably to be available or at least to watch the
proceedings because they are interested in this paver. So thank you for coming, guys up
there. And so now, Mr. Pontanilla?
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Those employees from Makawao, I
guess, baseyard, when they look at the piece of equipment, do they look also at the
maintenance record for this particular machine?
MR. HASHIRO: I'm not certain if they did. But like I said, it was in a workable condition. It
was proposed to be used when the supervisor was there, but unfortunately, due to rain
it. . .we, we couldn't use it then.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe an inquiry to the Department, City and County, just to,
you know, get a feel as far as, you know, how often that machine has been in the garage,
if it's been in the garage at the time. . .that they used this equipment. The other question I
have is that, and, and I relate back to Member Molina, when we had that one paving
company that doing the work for the whole County of Maui, we had issues in regards to
having our jobs being completed. We had budgeted two years ago to purchase a, an
equipment. And my question to you, why wasn't that purchased off that piece of
equipment two years ago?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Pontanilla, excuse me, Pontanilla, basically that piece of
equipment wasn't purchased because, as you know, there's been an economic downturn
with the resulting effect on revenues. So it was the Department's choice to basically save
money and not purchase that paving machine at that time. So those, those funds actually
lapsed for the paving machine
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lapsed two years ago, I guess. Have you made a study in
regards to some cost analysis if we had bought the machine, did our paving at the time
and, and. . .against the cost of that piece of equipment, and what would be the payoff in
regards to the equipment itself?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, not in so many words. But basically from the Department's
standpoint, we want to get more into preventive maintenance. We know this is an area
that we can stretch our dollars to a greater extent, and that's what we're trying to do
actually. So we know that there's been challenges because of the current economic
situation, but that's a, that's a direction that we want to head into in the future, and the
donation of this paving machine helps us to move toward that. And the next steps, of
course, would be up to the Administration and the Council as far as further funding for
this area, but this is an area to help us to, to make our roads or keep our roads in better
condition in the long term.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Pontanilla. Any other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just a quick follow-up question for
Mr. Arakawa. You mentioned this machine will be used for poorly paved areas. Now
our roads are generally paved by a private contractor. So is there any warranty that we
get from. . .when, when we do these contracts with private companies? Because my, my
question would be is like why, why are we paying or, or now going to do the follow-up
work on something that should've been done right in the first place and which was
performed by a private company? Can you clarify that for me? Because I don't know, it
just caused a little bit of concern.
MR. ARAKAWA: Some, some of the roads that we're talking about are dirt roads in fact that
the County has accepted as County roads, you know, mini-decades ago. Some of 'em are
paved and potholed, but they weren't built to standards by the original developer perhaps.
So there may be a variety of situations that may arise and it's not technically the fault of
the paving contracting per se.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay, thank you for that clarification. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Molina. Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just for the Members' information, back in Fiscal
Year 2009 we, as Members, had appropriated $400,000 to purchase a new equipment. So
just for your information. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Pontanilla, we know the status of that $400,000?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, according to Mr. Arakawa, the, the funds have already
lapsed. So, I'm assuming that it was either used for something else or as carryover
savings.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Is, is that correct, Director Arakawa?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes. Part of that money was used to buy three crack sealers. I can't quite
recall what the. . .total cost was about 90 grand, I believe, someplace in that range, and
we have stationed those right now for in Makawao, Wailuku and Lahaina, and propose to
use that Countywide. As we do a district, then we will move the equipment to another
district. Right now, I believe, Lahaina completed all the crack sealing that was noted by
our Engineering Division; they've finished all their work. Makawao is about half
finished, and Wailuku. „due to a labor shortage that which has recently been filled, we
hope to attack those pretty soon.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Just so that the public understand what a crack
sealer is, 'cause I. . .you know, you guys came practice on my street, so I know exactly
what it does. But could you explain to the public what that really does?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes. As, as the pavement ages, the pavement tends to crack open and what
that does is allow water to get to the sub-base, weakening the, the base of the pavement
and causing potholes. The crack sealers puts in, puts in an asphalt sealant to seal the
cracks to prevent the water from getting to the sub-base. So in, in essence, we extend the
life of the pavement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Victorino. Any other questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Just one more quick question. Mr Hashiro, if we get this
paver, we need the asphalt and where does that come from? Isn't it the same people that
do the commercial paving that, that produce the asphalt?
MR. HASHIRO: That is correct. Those are the same people we also buy our own cold mix and
when we have hot mix, we, we buy it from them also.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No problem with supply?
MR. HASHIRO: At this point, none.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo. Any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I get one. . .last one.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Last question. You know, we move into slurry seal. When do
we seal cracks and when do we go with slurry seal?
MR. HASHIRO: Crack sealing is normally the first process. When you slurry seal, the first
thing you gotta do is crack seal anyway. Slurry seal would probably be the next level up
above for your, for pavement maintenance. So that would be probably, you know, one of
the things we need to do when we have money to purchase something in that regard.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. You, you need a special equipment to do slurry seal?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes, but it's relatively inexpensive depending on which type you use. There's
one that's like a, a seal coat that kind of puts like an asphalt liquid down to preserve the
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oxidation or surface of the asphalt, and there's one that adds both the asph..., that liquid
asphalt and gravel, and that machine is pretty pricey right now. So the lesser standard is,
is a lot cheaper. It's. . .I forget what the pricing was, it was less than 100 grand, I think,
that we looked at. For the one that adds the gravel. . .and that is more closer to. . .I think
quarter of a million to 375,000, someplace in that range.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Council Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Hashiro, has the cost, has the
cost for paving gone down in the last two years?
MR. HASHIRO: I think the prices have come down a little. Due to the economy they're trying
to, I guess, build business so they, they've lowered the prices a bit. I, I think like, like a
road. . .what you call, like a milling machine, when we first looked at it, it was close to
half a million dollars for a milling machine that, that scarifies the pavement and takes it
off. Now we, we know that we can get it for about 375,000. So that's quite a bit of
savings, but it's still a pricey piece of machine, machinery.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So the, the turn of the economy, the availability of jobs
potential, and perhaps more competition--those factors didn't bring it down a lot more
noticeable?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Mateo, if you're talking about the resurfacing contracts that
we let out, the prices actually have gone down quite significantly. If you look at just our
County contracts in general, the CIP, it. . .the bids have come in a lot lower over the past
year or so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. No, and my, my only reason for, for asking is because,
you know, I'm one of those Members who during another time when we were looking at
the runaway cost of paving, you know, strongly suggested to the Department that we
should start taking a look at our own abilities to be able to pave. And, and this, for me,
was an exciting opportunity. I look, I look today at the offer for, you know, us to receive
a paver, but when we have a paver that's just as old as I am, 27, you know, I begin to
worry that some of our parts, you know, at the age we're at, you know, becomes
questionable. And even though I really want us to start looking at our ability to start
taking care of some of our lesser roadways, you know, I still think it's a good idea. I still
think we can do it a lot more economical, economically. . .conducive for us. But I was
just worried that perhaps this machine, you know, could come with a lot of baggage that
could exceed the use of, for the County in terms of us having to pay for a greater cost in,
in repairs. I, I just would look at your supervisors looking at this, the equipment and, and
being confident that it will meet its purpose of need, it will have ability to at least
practice, you know, train on it because $1,000 added to the cost of shipping here, you
know, that really is a manini factor when you look at the opportunities for training and
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accessibility to a machine that could help us meet some of our cost, especially in rural
communities when it takes two years to get somebody there to do our paving. So, you
know, there is opportunity and there is also liability. So I'm, I'm just here sitting kind of
with, with a little reservation in saying, yeah, let's, let's do this merely because of age
factors. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Council Chair Mateo. Any more questions? In allowing the
Members to ask their questions first, I have questions. Many of 'em have been asked
already. But I, I have some concerns about the age of the equipment. Twenty-seven
years. . .that's a, a long time. I know that we have a ten-year replacement program
mainly for trucks and smaller equipment, but it does present a concern. Do we know
the--and I think this was asked partially--do we know the projected service life left in this
machine?
MR. HASHIRO: Uh. . .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: And, and let me attach a question to that. I know in heavy equipment we
usually look at the engine hours, and how close we are on the engine hours to major
overhaul repairs for this machine? Department?
MR. HASHIRO: Realistically, we're not going to sink a lot of money into this machine to
repair. If it's going to cost us 30 grand to 50 grand or more, we're not going to repair it,
you know. We get it for 1,000, we're not going to sink big money into this machine We
hope to have it last at least a couple of years. There's some maintenance issues we, we
know we gotta deal with, but if it exceeds a certain threshold, we're probably not going to
fix it. . . .Does that answer your question?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Well, yeah, do we know what the projected service life is left on that
equipment?
MR. HASHIRO: Probably not very much. For our own. . .replacement policy, construction
equipment is between 15 to 20 years. It's way over that, you know, it's past that. But I,
I'd like to remind the Council that we did replace a dozer from Molokai that was over
30-something years. . .just recently in the last Budget. So, you know, we did have some
older equipment that we've managed to keep running.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for sharing that. Will this machine, if the Council, this
Council decides to receive this donation, will this machine be shared with all the other
districts being that this, this will be the only paving machine in our inventory in
Highways? Is that correct?
MR. HASHIRO: That would be our goal. On Molokai, it presents a problem because the batch
plant only operates once a year when they're doing other paving projects. So Molokai is
an issue. Lanai, I think we have an issue with the quality of the, the asphalt concrete. I
think they import a lot of their rock for that. That would be kind of costly, I think, for us
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to do on a regular basis. So realistically I, I think it's strictly for the island of Maui.
Hana is a good candidate that we would probably get into.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and this machine is. . .can be mobilized by Lowboy trailer?
MR. HASHIRO: Yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And you did mention that a part is not functioning. Would that
part be the heaters on that machine?
MR. HASHIRO: I believe so, yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So we would have to repair the heaters before it would be actually
functional for paving. But it would be, I guess, functional for training?
MR. HASHIRO: No, we still could use it. It's just that we gotta work a little bit faster when we
pave.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. And I, my other question has been asked by another Member, and
there's several questions. Do we know anywhere else in government or private industry
that has a paver like this on Maui?
MR. HASHIRO: Government, I don't believe they have. . .any government agency has a paver
on Maui Like I said, there are like three or four contractors that have pavers now.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I'm wondering when, when personnel were sent to look at the
equipment, why we didn't include a mechanic in that group, and you did say that it
wasn't put into operation because of the rain. Is there someway that we could inspect
that machine again and test it, operate it and, and see what we, you know, assess to be its
value and projected life? What are your. . .concerns on that?
MR. HASHIRO: Like I indicated, I think our projected life, you know, it's actually over its
service life, but we hope to use it for at least one or two years. . .at least until this
economy strengthens a little bit more. At that point, look at trying to buy a new one.
You know-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HASHIRO: --the two people that went over to Honolulu to look at it actually went on their
own time to look at it. We didn't pay for their travel or anything. One was on, in
Honolulu at the time. He went over on his own accord to go and take a look at it. The
other one did it, again, on his own time.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I see. Yeah. My, my interest is that if we sent a mechanic to look at it, he
could talk to the mechanic at City and County, review the repair and maintenance records
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because those records would show, you know, the major repairs that have been done on it
and the engine hours and so forth. So I, I'm just thinking of that allowed, that that
would've been a good way of certifying the value of that machine for us. And you did
answer about how much it would be for a new one. Tell me. . .because this is going to be
used not so much for do, doing long lengths of paving, this is more for taking care of
sections in the roadway that need to be resurfaced?
MR. HASHIRO: That is our initial intent is to take care of those ruts and those filled areas of
otherwise good pavement, yes.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. I think that's all I have. Members, any other questions?
And there are some requests by Members for us to request the repair and maintenance
record, and there are some other concerns raised that would like to have answers from the
Department of Public Works. So if at this time there's no further questions, Members,
the Chair would make a recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. The Chair, at this time, because of the request of
the Members for the Department to produce records and other things and in answering
our question, the--wait, before I, before I, I complete that, Member Pontanilla, did you
have questions for anyone else? The, the Finance Department, you wanted them here for
the study or this?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not, not particular for this item, but for the last one in regards to
RFPs. But before you make your recommendation and if it's going to be deferral, that I, I
would consider that we move forward on this one here and prior to approving the
resolution, hopefully we can get that information from the Department in regards to the
maintenance record and, and the like. So I, I thought I, I would pass you that
information. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. I'd like to agree with Member Pontanilla. I
feel, I'm okay with moving this to first reading [sic] and hopefully prior to first
reading [sic] we can get that information from the Department. So I, I would be. . .I
wouldn't support deferral at this point.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Would that be the consensus of Committee and Members?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And, Chair, if I may. You know, my questions. . .I
know if we can get those answers, would help make a. . .for me would make a good
decision, and I think it would help a lot of the other Council Members make a decision.
Again, the question I had basically the same lines as you, sir, that we just want something
that we know can be used. If we know for two or three years or whatever it might be, but
it's functional, you know, it's not something we're getting, you know, like Ms. Baisa had
mentioned, a white elephant, you know, or an endless pit that we're going to keep fixing
and fixing and fixing, you know. If that's the case, you know. . .you know, just forget it.
But I think, you know, I can support pushing this on and before first reading [sic] or,
or. . .yeah, we could get that answers, I'd be happy. And if the answers were negative or
were what I would call not applicable or, or not good for us, then I would, I would then at
that point not support it. But I can wait till then, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Victorino. And it seems to--Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, I, I would support that idea totally. I think we can
make a decision pending the receipt of the additional info.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Members. No further questions, the Chair will enter a
motion to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution and the filing of the
communication.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Chairman, I move to adopt the proposed resolution entitled
"AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF AN ASPHALT PAVER FROM
THE DEPARTMENT OF FACILITY MAINTENANCE, CITY AND COUNTY OF
HONOLULU, TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, COUNTY OF MAUI,
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 3.56, MAUI COUNTY CODE", and the filing of the
County Communication.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR MEDEIROS:
It's been moved by Member Pontanilla and seconded by
Member Victorino. Members, any further discussion? Seeing none, I'll call for the
question. All in favor of the motion, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: All opposed, say "no". Okay, it's seven "ayes" and zero "noes". The
motion is passed.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair
Vice-Chair
Pontanilla,
Medeiros,
and
Councilmembers Baisa, Kaho`ohalahala, Mateo, Molina, and
Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. Thank you, Department. Now we turn to our
second agenda item, Members, IM-35.
ITEM NO. 35: TRAFFIC SAFETY MEASURES IN THE AREA OF DORIS TODD
MEMORIAL CHRISTIAN SCHOOL (PAIA) (C.C. No. 09-325)

CHAIR MEDEIROS: Our second agenda item is traffic safety measures in the area of
Doris Todd Memorial Christian School, which is in Paia. The Committee is in receipt of
County Communication No. 09-325, from the Council Chair, transmitting a letter from
Quinn Gonzalez, relating to the safety measures in the area of Doris Todd Memorial
Christian School, located at 519 Baldwin Avenue, Paia, Maui.
So at this time, Members, we'd like to call on the Administration. First, call on the
Director of Public Works, Mr. Arakawa. And I'd like to also introduce upfront here is
Sergeant Aoki of the Maui Police Department, Traffic Division. Director, or whoever's
going to speak on this matter?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you noted, this matter stems from a
November 13, 2009 communication, from Council Chair Danny Mateo, transmitting a
letter from Ms. Quinn Gonzalez, requesting assistance in installing immediate safety
measures on Baldwin Avenue in the vicinity of Doris Todd Memorial Christian School.
The Infrastructure Management Committee met on this matter on November 30, 2009,
and let me just briefly recap what's transpired so far. In terms of the site conditions, we
note that there is a gradual downhill slope on Baldwin Avenue from Upcountry Makawao
to the Paia area. The segment of Baldwin Avenue where the Doris Todd Memorial
Christian School is located is on a fairly straight stretch of road. Coming from
Upcountry, there's a slight curve near the Paia Gym, then the road extends adjacent to
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Skill Village and the Doris Todd Memorial Christian School, and there's a curve near the
Hawaiian Tel Substation and another curve going to the old Paia Mill site. Vehicular
speeding has been a continuing issue in this location for the school. One of the factors
contributing to speeding issues is the straight stretch of roadway and the gradual
downslope in this area. Speed limit signs were installed a couple of years ago to warn
drivers that this is a 20-mile per hour school zone. However, the signage still did not
address the speeding concerns. We looked at the possibility of installing a speed table or
a raised crosswalk near the school; however, Baldwin Avenue is considered a regional
collector road and it's not considered appropriate for speed tables or raised crosswalks.
Because of the downslope in the area, we are very concerned that installation of speed
tables or a raised crosswalk may present an even greater hazard for motorists,
pedestrians, and adjacent property owners. Traffic calming measures can only aid in
encouraging motorists to slow down, and if a motorist unknowingly or knowingly drives
these speeding vehicles over a speed table, the chances of the motorist losing control of
the vehicle is enhanced. Thus in these types of situations a speed table or raised
crosswalk my increase the likelihood of an accident or may increase the seriousness of an
accident. In short, there is a limit to utilizing engineering measures to curb or control
speeding.
Before the most recent accident at the school, we discussed this matter with the school
administration and what the parties agreed to was an installation of speed feedback
monitors. These are electronic signs which show a driver the speed at which he or she is
traveling. We are also installing a flashing pedestrian crossing light. When a pedestrian
wants to cross the road, he or she just presses the button which activates the flashing light
which would warn drivers that pedestrians would be crossing the road. The
improvements along Doris Todd Memorial Christian School have been in place since
January of 2010, and we have actually programmed the flashing lights to flash
continuously during school hours, and during non-school hours pedestrians who desire to
cross the street would press a button to activate the flashing mode. We've worked
closely with the Police Department to tie the proposed improvements with enforcement.
The speed feedback monitors do collect data which can alert the Police Department if
average speeds are increasing in the area, and this can hopefully make more efficient use
of the Police Department's time as well as alert motorists to comply with the speed limit
We believe that the pro..., proposed improvements are working well. The school did
organize a sign-waving event during the morning rush hour in February of 2010 to
encourage motorists to slow down. And Roy Silva, from the Mayor's Office, and I were
privileged to participate in that event. And as always, we urge motorists in the area to
continue to drive safely in accord with the speed limit That concludes my comments.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Director. Sergeant Aoki, would you like to add to any remarks
and opening?
MR. AOKI: Hi, good morning. Sergeant Aoki with the Police Department, echoing
Director Arakawa's comments about the improvements. My officers were out there
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when the speed feedback or feed display. . .signs were put up, and they reported back to
me that there is an improvement in vehicles slowing down. It gets the attention of the
motorists. Because you have numerous motorists that get stopped for speeding, one of
the excuses is, well, I didn't know how fast I was going, in addition to all the other ones
that. . .you know, that comes up. But we've seen an improvement in it, and they also, the
Department of Public Works also has the ability to, to track or to, to monitor the speeds
of that roadway. Also, we just came across another portable traffic data collector that we
purchased that we can conduct surveys in other areas that are prone to complaints, and
using that we can better utilize our resources as far as what time, time of day that we need
to do the enforcement. The signage and everything is good, but I know it always comes
down to enforcement to send the final message. And so far on Baldwin Avenue in front
Doris Todd, it's been working out pretty well.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Sergeant Aoki. At this time, Members, the Chair will
open the floor for questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: I'm going to allow the area rep first to have the opportunity.
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Yeah. I want to, first of all, thank
most the Public Works Department and the Police Department for their efforts. The
complaints have certainly dropped, and I think it's definitely been an improvement. If I
could ask Sergeant Aoki in terms of citations, since the traffic calming devices have, have
gone up, has the Department seen a decrease in citations in the area as well?
MR. AOKI: As far as the decrease since the, the devices went up-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Prior to the devices going up, yeah-MR. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --has there been a drop in speeding tickets or any type of
traffic violations in the area?
MR. AOKI: Well, I would say there is a drop because we haven't been going out there as often
since the November letter. And we haven't had calls from the school, 'cause the school
would be the first ones to give us a call if they, you know, start seeing problems. But we
haven't been tracking since the devices went up because there was a noticeable
improvement in, in the lowering of speeds.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's great. Okay. Well, that sounds, everything sounds all
hunky-dory and good so far. So hopefully it, it stays that way, and appreciate the
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Department, you know, continuing to do, I guess, spot enforcement on occasion. All
right, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Molina. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. It was interesting. I think I heard
you say that those portable traffic signs not only display the speed you're going at, but
it's able to store those speeds so that you have that data?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct, Councilmember Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's interesting. I never realized that, you know, not only was
it capturing your speed, but that it could capture this data over a period of time so then
you could kind of see. You know, we all say oh, everybody's speeding, but it's another
story to actually have a record of the amounts and, you know, how fast people are going.
Now that's. . .I learned something today. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Member Baisa. Any other questions? Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not a question, but a comment for the Department. And, you
know, every time we ask the Department, both Public Works and, and Police
Department, regarding safety issue, you know, it is a high priority for them. But,
Chairman, because we're talking about safety issue. . .you know, you can rule me out of
order because I, I just want to bring up one point, one location. We do have a roadway
that's going to open tomorrow on Kam. Avenue and Maui Lani intersection, and I was
wondering if the Police Department will monitor that particular intersection for a time
until drivers, you know, acclimate themselves to the four-way stop at that location just for
safety. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. AOKI: Yes, Councilmember Pontanilla, we will be sending people out there to do spot
checks, especially when they open. . .I think it is, what is.. .
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tomorrow.
MR. AOKI: . . .tomorrow. And also, we'll be also positioned where the Kuikahi Drive and
Waiale Road with that traffic signals. Because as far as right now, I don't know which
one would have the priority, whether it'd be Waiale Road or Kuikahi. So we'll be
monitoring that also.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair, for letting me stray.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Pontanilla, yeah, we'll, we'll consider it a public notice so people
have that information for tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any more questions? Council Chair Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. And like Mr. Molina, I,
too, would like to thank the Department, the Police Department for providing us with a
lot of information. I, I thought it was really important that in the Police Department's
response to you, Mr. Chairman, in the questions that, that you submitted to them: one,
the number of accidents that occurred within this area within the last five years, that they
indicated 15, which tells us, you know, an average of three a year or thereabouts. And
then the number of citations that was issued along or the area right in front of the school
area, that 3,585 citations. That's over 700 citations a year right in this general area. So
obviously we have speeding issues here. And if it wasn't for, you know, Mr. Molina and
the school coming forward and citing the need for attention in this specific area, you, you
know, I doubt it it would've actually occurred. So thanks to them coming forward.
Unfortunately, due to the accidents that had involved the school at that particular time
and the Police Department's visibility at this point, you know, I'm really thankful that the
item had and the issue has been primarily addressed, and I look forward for the continued
participation because there is no greater tool at this point than having the Police presence.
That'll stop people in their tracks.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, you know, and I think it's real evident because even with
the schools monitoring, when we see the numbers that they provided us with the
7:30 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. and you take a look at those vehicles, out of the 126 tracked,
42 percent are still driving beyond the school limit; and after school at 2:00 to 3:00 in the
afternoon, 60 percent of the 180 vehicles passing this area are still speeding. So, you
know, the Police presence is real important. The school's ability to continue monitoring
is really important. But nonetheless at this point, these departments need to be
commended for their work that they've done. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Council Chair Mateo, for making those notes to the Department
and the appreciation. We do appreciate the Police and the Public Works for what they
have tried to address and do out in that area. And I, I think we heard in other occasions
from Director Arakawa that they basically have done all they can that would be allowed
in the area or that would be reasonable in trying to mitigate the traffic concerns there. So,
Members, any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Recommendation?
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Seeing none, the Chair will make his recommendation.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Recommendation?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Members. The Chair will entertain a motion to recommend
filing of County Communication No. 09-325.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Chairman, I move to file County Communication
No. 09-325.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: It's been moved by Councilmember Pontanilla and seconded by
Councilmember Victorino for the recommended filing. Any other discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: All opposed, say "no". Okay, seven "ayes" and zero "noes", and the
motion passes.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair
Vice-Chair
Pontanilla,
Medeiros,
and
Councilmembers Baisa, Kaho`ohalahala, Mateo, Molina, and
Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending FILING of communication.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, Members, we are now on the final item of our agenda, and let me
turn to it. Okay, we're now--and you can see the time, Members, so we, we have to be
efficient with this or, you know, whatever we decide to do when we get to the time.
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ITEM NO. 31: CONTRACT TO PROVIDE CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR
MA'ALAEA BAY CORAL REEF DEGRADATION STUDY
(DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, JOB
NO. WW09 22) (C.C. No. 09-269 and Contract No. C4663)
-

CHAIR MEDEIROS: But anyway the next item is IM-31, which is also communi , County
Communication 09-269, from Mr. Wayne Nishiki, and Item 31 is a contract to provide
consultant services for Ma'alaea Bay Coral Reef Degradation Study with the Department
of Environmental Management, Job No. WW09-22.
The Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communication No. 09-269, from
Councilmember Wayne K. Nishiki, relating to a grant received by the County to
investigate coral reef degradation at Maalaea Bay. Number two, Contract No. C4663,
between the County of Maui and the Marine Research Consultants, Inc., to conduct a
Ma'alaea Bay Coral Reef Degradation Study.
So, Members, at this time I'd like to call on the Director of Environmental Management,
Director Okuma, for opening remarks.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you, Committee Chair Medeiros, Committee Members. I'd just like to
put some things into context with respect to this process and where we've ended up
today.
It was in early 2008 when the Mayor and Department accommodated
Councilmember Michelle Anderson's request that we be the receiving Department for
Congressional earmarked funds of $185,000, and that our Department procure and
administer this contract. As it turned out, this process took two years from the time of the
request to the time of contract issuance for the project. It was in early 2008 that former
Councilmember Michelle Anderson submitted a request to Congresswoman Hirono for
Fiscal Year 2009 appropriations in order to receive Congressional earmarked funding.
Her office prepared that request for these earmarked funds. I'd like for, to just refer the
Council to the document that you have in front of you, that's basically the appropriation
request form to Congresswoman Hirono, and that. . .and piece of document is important
because that describes the request from Councilmember Anderson's office describing
five goals for the proposed $185,000, which can be summarized in those five points. And
I won't read that to you because that is in front of you. Congress basically approved the
earmarked funds, earmarked funding as proposed by Councilmember Anderson's office,
and our Department was notified late October from the Maalaea Community Association.
This is the first time that our Department was made aware of the Association's interest in
this funding request. Subsequently, as a surprise to everyone, including
Councilmember Anderson's office, on May 2009 the Department is informed that
earmarked funding was being handled by NOAA, the Federal National Ocean and
Atmospheric Administration, and it was being handled as a grant with preference for
funding to go to the UH instead of the County. The County is informed by NOAA that a
grant application must now be made for this earmarked funds of 185,000. It was about a
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month later that the Department is informed by NOAA that the grant cannot go directly
to the University of Hawaii because the funding was earmarked for the County, and there
was now a two-week deadline for the submission of a grant application.
Councilmember Nishiki's office requested our Department's assistance to prepare that
grant application, and the Mayor agreed to accommodate this request. In accordance
with procurement requirements, the Department prepared a Request For Proposal to
solicit proposals to undertake the study in accordance with the Congressional approval of
this grant. The Department submitted the grant application in that two-week deadline.
We were asked by NOAA whether we were taking a 10 percent administrative fee, which
we would've been entitled to from the grant amount, but we waived that fee.
Councilmember Nishiki's office is informed as to what the Department was doing at each
step. And in discussions between the Director and Nishiki's office, she is informed that
our Department would in fact lead the efforts on this grant project and the procurement
and the administration of the contract. Our Department met several times with
Ms. Daoust and members of the Maalaea Association. We subsequently received
notification from the Maalaea Association that they preferred this project involve further
testing and sampling rather than a study to look at alternative wastewater disposal
infrastructure. Subsequent to that, the selection committee did recommend the selected
consultant, which I did approve, and the proposal from that selected consultant as well as
the consultant's name is sent to NOAA, which then revues and informs the County that it
is okay to issue the Notice To Proceed to the consultant. So in other words, the
consultant plus the scope of work was NOAA approved as part of the grant.
Subsequently, the grant was executed and the consultant was given a Notice To Proceed
April 7, 2010.
With me today is Mr. Gregg Kresge, the Deputy Director, as well as Mr. Dave Taylor,
the Wastewater Division Chief, and we can answer any questions that you may have.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Director. Would the other members of your staff have opening
remarks at this time?
MR. KRESGE: No comments at this time.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you. Members, I want to open up the floor for questions and
discussions. I would like to ask the Members if there are any objections for me to
provide Mr. Wayne Nishiki the first opportunity, being he's the initiated, he initiated the
County Communication. But because he's not a Voting Member of our Committee,
normally I would allow the Non-Voting Members to ask questions after the Voting
Members. Are there any objections to allowing Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki, you have the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Thank you, Cheryl. You've heard some of the
testimony today and some of the concerns raised in regards to the scope of this contract.
Your comments and perhaps maybe a chance to review it and maybe make a decision to
redo the contract?
MS. OKUMA: I'm not sure I understand the question. But if the question is did the scope of the
Request For Proposal meet the goals of the request for this grant money or this
Congressional earmarked funds, the answer is yes, it did. And to ensure that it did, in
fact we had to submit the consultant's proposal and the consultant's name to NOAA,
which then approved this. We would not have been able to issue the Notice To Proceed
if we had not gotten that NOAA approval.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So in, in regards to the NOAA approval, you're basing that, in
essence, to say that what was the goal of Michelle Anderson and
Congresswoman Hirono's number one concern to define an immediate solution for the
alternative disposal of wastewater and domestic sewage from onshore cesspools, septic
tanks, and injection well based on scientifically qualified studies already conducted over
eight years? In other words, what the testimony today is saying is ultimately what you
are asking for in the RFP does not really coincide with the thrust of the concerns raised
and perhaps given by--not perhaps given by--given by the Hirono office; and, and this is
a concern raised by, again, Michelle Anderson. So, I think you are pretty well telling this
Committee you feel justified and you will not perhaps cancel this-MS. OKUMA: Well, we-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --project given to Steve Dollar.
MS. OKUMA: Well, we have not had any discussions with former Councilmember Anderson in
over a year. So, I don't know what she knows or what she does know. I don't know
who, you know, what the communications have been with her. I can just say our
Department has not been in communications with her. But what I will say is that we have
met with the Maalaea Association and we looked and talked about the goals, the five
goals that are set forth in that appropriation request form, that's basically the scope of the
grant or, or the scope of these earmarked fundings. And if you take a look at those goals,
they basically boil down to two different types of categories. One large category is
studies for testing and sampling. The other general category is to look at alternatives for
wastewater disposal infrastructure. We specifically met with Ms. Daoust and the
Maalaea Association to discuss those general categories. We were concerned that
185,000 is certainly not enough to do studies plus preliminary work to look at alternative
infrastructure. We got notification from Ms. Daoust, who represents the Maalaea
Association, that they preferred that this work do further testing and sampling instead of a
study to look at alternative infrastructure. And so when the Request For Proposal went
out, it did take that into consideration, that does fit into the goals. . .one of, at least one of
the five goals or several of them in terms of the appropriation request and the scope of
this Federal funding. So, I guess the answer to that question is yes, the scope of work
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from the RFP meets the requirements of the grant, and the proposal that was reviewed
was responsive to the Request For Proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you are saying that this Administration is satisfied with how
the, your RFP went out and so, therefore, you're not going to perhaps retract the RFP?
MS. OKUMA: There's no reason or basis to retract the proposal or the contract. . .act...,
actually it's a contract now, for which we've already issued the Notice To Proceed. And,
again, we did that only subsequent to getting NOAA approval upon their review of this
scope.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, I, I just want to say that, you know, I. . .my, my,
my office has reviewed and you've heard testimony today, and you've looked at what
Michelle Anderson had asked, and that was to define an immediate solution for
alternative disposal of wastewater and domestic sewage from onshore cesspools, septic
tanks, and injection well based on scientifically qualified studies already conducted over
eight years. I think when you look at what the study is requesting, it is totally contrary to
this and, and there lies the concern. The studies, she has said, has already been
completed, Ms. Okuma; and therefore, we are asking that a solution for an alternative
disposal of wastewater and domestic sewage from onshore cesspools, septic tanks, and
injection wells be looked at.
MS. OKUMA: Well, let me, let me just say that when we realized or were informed that the
Maalaea Association was involved, prior to that date I gave you, we had never been
informed of that. And it was, Councilmember Nishiki, your office that asked us to
dialogue with the Maalaea Association. We had several meetings with them. We went
over those five objectives and goals and told them this is not a lot of money to do both
studies and to do an evaluation study on infrastructure. We asked them, do you want us
to do the testing and sampling study or do you want us to do an infrastructure study.
They said they were not interested in the infrastructure study. They wanted us to pursue
sampling and testing. So as a matter of fact in terms of the Request For Proposal and the
proposal that came in from this particular consultant, part of their proposal is to in fact
identify point and nonpoint pollution and nutrient sources. And that is in fact one of the
goals that is set forth in that document that was submitted to Cong..., Congress,
Congresswoman Hirono's office as being, as being one of the goals.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, you know, you've. . .we've listened to this
Administration and, and, therefore, this is, this is my concern. . .and, and I think Michelle
says this really clearly in her writing to us this morning: It appears the grant proposal
submitted by the Department of Environmental Management changed the objective of the
original appropriation request from defining an immediate solution to further study of the
bay. She says, the Request For Proposal that was issued from this grant states as its
project outcome: The anticipation outcome of this project is a study that details current
Maalaea Bay reef conditions that examines closely all the potential factors that may be
affecting Maalaea Bay's reef health... The resulting contract issued on March 2009 will
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produce a benthic habitat map from Maalaea Bay using remote sensing imagery. It will
also incl ..., produce a study of groundwater/surface water input to the bay. While it may
provide more scientific data on the deterioration of the bay, it does nothing, again
nothing to provide a remediation plan or an immediate solution of alternative disposal of
wastewater. It appears that the Department of Environmental Management and the
contract they approved are using the grant money to question the studies that were
presented to Congress in order to receive the appropriation. The studies were
substantial enough to convince myself, Congressman Hirono [sic], and Congress, that an
immediate solution should be found for alternative disposal of Maalaea wastewater.
Finally she goes, with only 8 percent cover left in Maalaea Bay, more studies of its
degrading reef might just study it to death.

And, and this is what is the concern, Director. Where you're going with this is something
that has already been studied, and so. . .it's a waste of taxpayers' money. Now if you are
continually going to say to this Committee that this is what you've done, you've
addressed that study, yet the author of this legislation is saying to you. . .to the contrary,
and yet you fail to recognize even at this date, as late as it may be, that you are not going
to take her concerns into consideration, this, to me, smacks of. . .anogance, the inability
of County government and this Administration in working with you to even consider her
concerns on how the RFP has been sent out, which goes contrary to exactly
what. . fonner Councilwoman Anderson is writing today to this Committee to, to ask you
to do.
MS. OKUMA: Well, as I mentioned, it's not contrary to the goals of this particular Federal
funds, and I think in terms of the statement that we're already, that this is doing a study
that's already been done, I'm going to ask Mr. Dave Taylor to perhaps go through. . .that
particular contract.
MR. TAYLOR: I, I think one thing that should be noted is, is this study is doing something
that's never been done before. I was pretty surprised when I first read this proposal
because I've heard so much over the years that Maalaea Bay is. . .there's no coral left and
it's all dead, et cetera. I've read that so many times in letters to the editor, heard it said so
many times. I, myself, never questioned it. When I read this and I saw where that data
came from, that there's been a. . .only a couple of sites investigated, as a whole no one's
ever really mapped the live coral or the dead coral in the whole bay. And I was kind of
shocked that that had never been done because I just assumed there had been so much
talk about it, that I, I assumed somebody must've done that. And I know I was very
impressed with this proposal because somebody said, hey, let's take a step back, before
we start blaming what might be the cause and what might not be the cause, it took a very
science and engineering based approach, which is to say, let's take a step back, let's
quantify very precisely what's alive, what's dead, where is there algae, where is there not.
Then let's see how what's going on in the bay matches human activity. This is usually
the first thing we do in a science and engineering study. Just like if you get a rash, the
first thing you do is it on your whole body, meaning maybe it's something you ate, or is it
just on your arm where you weren't wearing clothes and you, you, you know, you just
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rubbed up against something. The first thing you do is you very accurately say where is
the problem, where is it not. And what we found is that no one's done this before. So at
the end of the day what we're going to have, the single biggest thing that this proposal is
going to have, is a very accurate mapping, what's alive and what's dead. And that's
something that can be used to judge everyone's theories about what may or may not be
causes. Because if, you know, all of a sudden it's found that, that corals' alive in one
area and dead in other areas, that may very well correspond to different types of cause
and effects. So I, I think some of the testifiers may not understand exactly the, the scope,
but I think one thing we can all agree with is that this scope has never been done, and this
is going to be a level of detail about mapping what's alive and what's dead and where is
what that has never been done, and it will be the basis of making a lot of conclusions that
have never been able to be made before. So there, there's certainly some other parts in
the scope and I know other people have talked about them, but that is something that has
absolutely never been done before.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and, and. . .and I am really bothered by, again,
Mr. Taylor today and, again, this Administration. You know, if Council Members listen
clearly to what Ms. Okuma said, it is not about. . .as she said, we've contact the Maalaea
Association. What, what is she trying to do, make Maalaea Association basically the
scapegoat to justify what they're doing? I think what should really be the fact,
Mr. Chairman, is that they both basically said to Michelle Anderson and to, to the office
that I was trying to inquire about, to forget it, butt out, Nishiki; butt out, Anderson; we're
going to issue this contract. This should be something that this Council should be
concerned about. You know. . .Mr. Taylor goes on to say, oh, it's all about what he
believes. You've already heard some testimony said to the effect that when they offered
their help, they had this dazed look, and the reason is is because in some areas, Dave,
such as nonpoint pollution, Clean Water Act, we may need to admit that we don't know
enough so, therefore, seek some help. And, and, and, and this is not where from what
Dave is saying where Michelle and Mazie's office was headed towards what Dave was
just thinking and justifying. This is not what they were saying. And I don't appreciate
the smokescreen, you know. I think that this Council really needs to listen to what has
been said today and see whether or not these two individuals representing Environmental
Management are doing their work. And if we don't think they're doing it, then I think we
need to send a strong message to these people in saying, hey, you're not the policy
setters, you need to, again, listen to what has been requested and what was approved.
One hundred eight-four, eight-five hundred thousand dollars is nothing to scoff at,
Mr. Chairman. And when you look at what is being requested and what the consultant
has stated about what pretty well is in his report, in his response with the RFP, he's
already admitting that he doesn't believe any of these cons..., conditions that we're,
we're talking about has anything to do with the conditions of this bay.
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This should be an alarming-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --concern-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah, let me, let me interrupt you. And I don't to mean to interrupt you,
but I just want to know, Members, how long you want to continue because we do have an
afternoon meeting, and Mr. Young from the. . .Director of Finance has come up if you
have any questions for him. But, Members, I don't want to, you know, interrupt
Member Nishiki's momentum, but I need to know as a Chair how late we're going to go
because of this. Any responses? 12:30? Is 12. . .everybody alright with 12:30 to give
the Members an hour for lunch before the next meeting?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Are we good? Okay, we'll go till 12:30-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, I just want to end.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I just want to end because-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I'm, I'm really tired of listening to the, the smokescreen.
When we heard today from an expert in the Clean Water Act about the concerns about
the possible violations, we've heard this Department said, as we far as we know, we're
not violating any law. You saw in Sunday's newspaper article not concerning Maalaea
Bay, but concerning their responses to the prime visitor area in Kaanapali, and yet an
expert is saying be careful because these laws have come online, Clean Water Act, that
they may not know about and, and yet they are going to, again, put this County and the
taxpayers in a situation that could reap us, from a Federal agency, fines because we
violated a law. So let me ask you this question today--and I'll end it right now--are you
familiar with the law that was stated this morning in regards to the Clean Water Act-MS. OKUMA: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and are you saying that we are not in violation of any of this?
MS. OKUMA: Yes, I'm very familiar with the Clean Water Act and the regulations which,
which have been in place since the 1970s and subsequently. We are not in violation.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Any other questions? Until 12:30, Members, you
have--Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon or good morning,
Ms. Okuma. One question with regards to the contract itself and once. . .I guess
basically, is it a done deal then, you've negotiated with Mr. Dollar, and if we were to say
attempt to pull out of it, then what kind of consequences would the County be looking at
or, or compensation? I mean can you-MS. OKUMA: The contract has been executed, meaning all parties have signed it. The Notice
To Proceed has been issued, so legally we have a binding contract. There is a termination
clause in there, but I believe that that would come at some cost.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you have any idea what that could be?
MS. OKUMA: I, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Any other questions, Members? Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm sure you're going to bring it back, right?
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. In, in regards to the contract itself, you know, I, I've
heard one of the testifiers says, said that, you know, the process was done, done okay, but
the scoping was too, you know, too loose. In regards to the scoping of the project, what
was considered?
MS. OKUMA: I'm going to have Mr. Taylor address that.
MR. TAYLOR: Director Okuma already discussed how the grant language came into being. So
what I can tell you is what our group did, is we took the grant language and we put it into
the format of the request of the County Request For Proposals. We didn't change the
grant format. And so essentially what we did is we opened it to the widest range of
scopes of work. As you heard from a testifier this morning, I, I did say we're not experts
in ocean water quality, sampling; we're not experts in, in ocean water ecosystems. So we
didn't want to limit the scope of work, and we didn't want to focus the scope of work.
We wanted the different scientific groups to come with their scopes of work, how they
would best attack the problem, and we wanted to be very open for that. So the RFP took
the very, the exact grant language, which was approved by NOAA, put it into the County
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Request for Proposal process and just said any scientific group who wants to attack this,
put together your scope of work and at this cost. The cost was the. . .cost was not a factor
because everyone had the same cost, it was the grant amount. So it wasn't evaluated
based on what was more or less expensive. We said this is how much money we have,
here's the problem we're trying to get to the bottom of; how would you approach it. And
we opened it up to any possible scope of work that would attack that. And what we did is
then we evaluated all of the proposals about which scope of work seem to best attack the
problem and, and give the best deliverable. So that's how we developed the scope. It's
not that we developed the scope, it's that each consultant team developed a scope to solve
the problem.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Was there any consideration in regards to. . .I guess scientists
that study qual..., water quality? You know, a company was mentioned, Brown and
Caldwell. I know they've done study for the County of Maui. Were there, were they
considered and anybody else considered for studies on water quality in this particular
issue?
MR. TAYLOR: There were five proposals, and I believe all of them were consortiums of
various people and companies. There may have been one that was just one company, but
I, I think most of them were a bunch of different people forming a, a sort of a group
venture type of thing. And Brown and Caldwell specifically was not on any of the teams.
So it's not like we can consider them if they didn't put in a proposal. But each proposal
was evaluated based on its scope of work, the team members, their backgrounds,
et cetera.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. You, you know, we, we hear
about value engineering in the construction industry. Is there something similar in
regards to scientific type studies?
MR. TAYLOR: Well, this, this actually would fit right into value engineering. Value
engineering is, in a construction contract is when you say I want some end result, how
can you best get it for me. That's exactly how we put this Request For Proposal out. We
said we're interesting in knowing what is likely causing the problems in Maalaea Bay,
and we're open to your scope of work, to your methodology, and we didn't really put any
constraints on that. So in a sense, this followed exactly what you're, you're talking
about.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So in the end, are they going to identify what is the problem and
provide this County with possible solutions in. . .I guess solving this problem?
MR. TAYLOR: That is correct. That is the scope.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other Members? Member Baisa--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --followed by Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to make a request, if we could please
have Ms. Okuma's opening remarks in writing, it would be very helpful.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Madam Director, so upon hearing your
responses with regards to the scope of work, now you mentioned and you had. . .was it
two or three meetings with the Community Association, and that it was the Association
that requested this scope of work be done by the Department?
MS. OKUMA: Yes. Generally, we said that the goals fell into two categories. One is a study to
do testing and sampling, and the other category is to do evaluation of various wastewater
infrastructure, because 185,000 can't possibly spread out over those two great categories,
two general categories. And they basically sent us a, a message back saying that they
wanted to go forward with a testing and sampling study.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you have. . .that letter, I guess, that-MS. OKUMA: It was an e-mail. We do have a copy of that e-mail.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, because. . .and I ask this question because based on
what we're hearing in testimony this morning, it sounds, you know, almost like a he said
versus she said type of deal and, you know, all we want to do is just make sure we
accurately fmd out what was being requested and so forth. Because, you know, I'm like
you, Mr. Chairman, we're sort of the players that are in the dark here as far as what
actually transpired between the Department and the Community Association. And I
don't know if the Association had, would, could be able to provide us--I don't know if
it's your intent, Mr. Chair, to make a decision today, but I would like to request that the
Association, if that's possible, they could provide some minutes. I presume there may
have been some minutes taken between the Department and the Association. That may
be helpful to us as a Committee as to what direction we want to go with this. So it
sounds like certainly. . .it, it's interesting to say the least. And one last question to the
Director. So there is no way to incorporate as part of the contracts that, that has already
been executed to request, I guess, Mr. Dollar to take into consideration some of the
requests from the Association now to do additional study to find the solution, I guess? I
guess in the current contract it doesn't ask for that. . .as far as Mr. Dollar to make that
request to finding a solution to disposal of wastewater. . .and so for alternatives, if you
will?
MS. OKUMA: I'm going to ask Mr. Taylor to address that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Member Molina. The Request For Proposals listed exactly how
much funds we had from the grant, and I believe all the proposals had a scope of work
that went right up to that limit So there isn't any additional funding to have this
consultant do any additional work other than what's already in there, in their scope of
work.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. So any additional scope of work will probably have to
come out of our pockets and more than likely or some other funding source then at this
point? All right, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Member Molina, Staff has noted your request.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. Member Pontanilla, followed by Mr. Nishiki.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Since everybody knew that the amount was 100
and. . .approximately $185,000, how did the Department select this particular consultant
in regards to the number of people that had submitted RFPs?
MS. OKUMA: Okay. Mr. Taylor will take that question.
MR. TAYLOR: We, we followed the standard State, County methodology for evaluating
Request For Proposals. We set up a team, and that team was myself, Mr. Kresge and
Kuhea Paracuelles, the Mayor's Environmental Coordinator. We. . .had a number of
categories which were proposed approach, experience, and qualifications. . .kind of based
on that. Each person read independently the proposals, put together score sheets
independently, and then we added those scores together. That's the, the standard method
of, of evaluating Request For Proposals or proposals themselves. I can tell you in this
case, the three of us independently shows Marine Research Consultants as number one
before we ever got together. Each of us independently did choose this proposal as the
best proposal. So. . .and then put together the scoring sheets, and that all gets submitted
through, you know, through Purchasing with the contract request. So we went through
the standard procedure.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So in the end, then the three of you selected the vendor that
would be doing this work? You know, I was under the assumption that probably
Finance, but I guess not. So.. .
MR. TAYLOR: The procedures are that that happens within the Department usually.
Sometimes you get somebody from outside, also within the County, who's a technical
expert. So, so that's. . .I think whenever you see Request For Proposals from any of the
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departments, that is a standard process and we run that by the Purchasing Division of
Finance to make sure what we were doing was appropriate before we did it. But it, it's
something we do. . .normally, as you know, we choose consultants and we do Request
For Proposals. So, again, we took this grant, we put it into the procedure that we're used
to of going through a Request For Proposal leading to, towards a consultant contract.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just for my own curiosity, this particular company
that was, I guess, selected. . .how many jobs or contracts that this particular one company
gotten from the County of Maui?
MR. TAYLOR: To my knowledge, none.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Mr. Nishiki, let me allow Mr. Kaho' ohalahala first. He didn't have a
chance-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fine.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --in the first round, please. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I, I know that the
Finance Director is here, but I'm looking at the document which is the procurement
process. One. . .for Mr. Taylor. What you just described in your review, is that available
for us to, to take a look at?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm not sure exactly what you're referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: What you just explained to Member Pontanilla
about your process, your review process-MR. TAYLOR: The process?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --how you scored, yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: I believe the process is defined in HRS.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I'm talking about your actual review of that,
the-MR. TAYLOR: The actual scoring sheets and things?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yes.
MR. TAYLOR: I'm sure that is.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: I know that the Department of Finance keeps all of those.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, I'd like to request that, that copies
of that be made available for our review.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Staff, so noted.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --and I'm looking at the Exhibit "C" which is the
general terms and conditions for goods and services contract, and I, I just wanted to
ask--and I'm not sure if this question goes to Corporation Counsel or to the Finance
Director since this is signed off by the Finance Director in terms of this particular
contract. But under Section 8, it says "Modifications", and my question is in this section
it does allow for modifications of, of the contract itself. So what I think was being
suggested this morning in testimony was that the scope of work perhaps need to be honed
in, and this. . .although it's a contract that's already been awarded, there are provisions
within this that allow us to, to make modifications to that contract, perhaps to the scope
section. So, I just want to understand from Corporation Counsel.
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah. Thank you. Generally speaking, changes that are within the existing
scope of work can be made unilaterally under the contract. But conditions that would
alter the scope of work itself would have to be under a mutual agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So your answer is yes, it can be done?
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah, probably. And, and I would, and I would presume that the Finance
Director could also.
MS. OKUMA: We need to clarify that because this was a NOAA approval, NOAA grant
approval. So Mr. Kresge was dealing with NOAA directly. So, I'm going to ask him to
address that.
MR. KRESGE: Okay. So. . .good morning. Let's see with this, with the grant, with the grant
proposal in working with NOAA, they, they. . .before the grant was awarded--this
happened in two parts actually. The first part was that we came up with a scope of work
that was general enough that was allowing. . .several consultants to be able to participate
if they so choose. The second part of the proposals was that--and this was based on the
grant award--is that the successful proposal that was chosen would become a part of the
grant. Therefore, what happened is the first, the first part was dependent on part B.
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When we went forward with the, with the RFP, that satisfied the first part with the scope
of work, and then the successful proposal that came out of that, out of those five
proposals that were submitted, that was then--I worked with NOAA on submitting that to
NOAA for their comments and concerns and then, in addition, making sure that it met
their criteria. And once it met their criteria, then that became part of the grant award.
Now the problem with changing the scope is that that is something that we don't
necessarily have control over. NOAA is the administer, administrator of the award
through the County and we handle the contract. So the problem is is that. . .that award is
based on that specific proposal. To change that would be to change the award. I, I hope
that clarifies some issues. So-MS. OKUMA: I think, I think the, the bottom line is there would be issues with that is what it
sounds like because NOAA, NOAA approved that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. OKUMA: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: And I would just like to, I would just like to add one comment. The consultant
that was chosen, in fact all the proposals, were scientists. It was a science-based study.
The concept of . if, if somebody was going to look at alternative wastewater treatment
or disposal methods, that would be a civil engineering wastewater study. This consultant
and none of the consultants who put in proposals, are the right type of consultant to do
that kind of work. Even if the County was going to come up with some more funds and,
and want to investigate, you know, building a new treatment plant or, or adding reuse
areas or putting pipeline in, et cetera, et cetera, I wouldn't put that under this contract.
We would need a, a very different skill set.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Mr. Taylor, but my question is
simply do we have the ability to modify, you know? I'm not asking for your concerns
here, but my basic question is do we have the ability to modify this to adjust? I, I already
heard your comments, which was no, you know. But when we have these contracts
before us and we have specific sections in here that allow us to take a look at these kinds
of agreement that we have made and allow us the exercise perhaps to modify,
Corporation Counsel said if we have mutual agreement, we could in fact engage in some,
some discussion about modifying the scope. That's what I've come to understand.
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah. And I, and I think I might, just based on the comments I'm hearing
from the Department, presume that their comments are more in line of if it's modified,
that would destroy the source of funding that the Department's receiving for this. So.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: But how would we know that if we have not
even engaged in a discussion concerning a modification? I mean are you saying that
we're prevented from asking to modify--
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MS. OKUMA: I don't-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --because-MS. OKUMA: --I don't think-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --we're threatened by something we don't even
know yet?
MS. OKUMA: Well, I think the first question is to go back to NOAA because NOAA is the one
that sets up these parameters and these requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. When you hand us these documents that
said these are our agreements for a contract, what are they for?
MS. OKUMA: I'm not sure I understand your question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: When we receive these documents that show us
that we have contracted.. .
MS. OKUMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: . . .for services and in these contracts we have
conditions here that say that we have the ability to modify, what is this for?
MS. OKUMA: Well, that's the legally binding document.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Correct. So if it's a legal binding document,
then it says here that we have the ability to modify. Then I'm asking why are we not
pursuing those avenues in light of the fact that we're trying to meet some, some of the
concerns not only of the County and the Department, but that of the-MS. OKUMA: I think-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --the-MS. OKUMA: --I think-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --the project itself?
MS. OKUMA: --I think what we're saying because this is an unusual set, set of circumstances,
this is a grant handled by-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: No. Let me ask you--

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 7, 2010

MS. OKUMA: --by NOAA-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --if you are asked to pursue this direction, is that
something you said that you're not going to be able to do?
MS. OKUMA: I think my answer would be we need to go back to NOAA 'cause we certainly
don't want to lose this funding or jeopardize this award-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Absolutely. But we're asking to hone in on
scope of services, and is this something that we are able to do?
MS. OKUMA: And I think before we can do that, we would have to go back to NOAA and ask
them that question, whether you can modify the contract without losing the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Then, then perhaps we should be considering
that-MS. OKUMA: I'm sorry, which would be to mod..., to modify the grant.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. If Staff-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And if just to clarify-CHAIR MEDEIROS: --could-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --my earlier request, Chair, for the review
of . .the review process in the RFPs, for all of the, the applicants.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay. So noted, Staff. Okay, thank you. Mr. Nishiki-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --I know I was going to call on you. It's 12:35-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm, I'm going to end real quickly. And, and-CHAIR MEDEIROS: Okay, I'll give you a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, fine. You heard what Sol asked for.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I want this Committee to go and write to NOAA whether we
can amend these contracts. That's what I want to do.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, you heard the Administration also say that as far as
any violation of the Clean Water Act, there is none. I want to go and write to EPA and,
and find out from them specifically if there are any violations with how the County is
dealing with injection wells, if there are any at all law that may be in violation. . .because
we heard from testifiers today. And this is my concern why I say this, Mr. Chairman.
This is the pattern of this Department, okay. We heard, we read. . .when I read the
Sunday newspaper in, in it, they gave the reason, no money. Okay. True. In this year's
CIP Budget, there was no project for wastewater reuse. So, so the Committee knows.
When we asked for an added position in the prior Budget to hire a conservation employee
and we checked with this group and they said, yeah, put it in. We put it in, what did this
Department do? They did not hire this employee. Two strikes against them in, in regards
to looking at reuse. The third, when the Wailea, Grand Wailea sought rezoning for an
expansion, I met with the Grand Wailea management and they agreed to a condition to
put in money, put in money, Mr. Chairman, for an R-1 waterline when the time comes.
Okay. Before the Planning Commission, this Department goes in and refused to add the
condition despite that the Wailea, Grand Wailea owners agreed to this. Now why I'm
concerned for us as Council Members? We try to set policy; they ignore the concerns of
EPA, a Federal agency; USGS; independent agencies; University of Hawaii; and again
the residents of Maui County. This to me, Mr. Chairman, is really showing this Council
and to me personally that they want to set policy and really care again nothing of what is
being said to them today. And so that's the reason why I think Sol's question of whether
we can go back and modify this agreement, you heard them, you know-CHAIR MEDEIROS: We, we're gonna send-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, I want you to write directly to the NOAA-CHAIR MEDEIROS: We already made a note of that-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --to find this out.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We already made-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Also the others.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and I'm not saying that what's going to come out in the
wash, but I'm really surprised to see--
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CHAIR MEDEIROS: And, Mr. Nishiki-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I will also make a call to EPA.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: We have gone beyond our time that we-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: --the Members wanted to go to. But thank you for that. Even if we got
more time, I'm sure this wouldn't be settled today. Because of the questions the
Members have that want to be asked of the Department of, or of NOAA, it's gonna take
us a bit of time to do that. But, Members, if you have requests and, and need
information, you need to make those requests also and either through us, through the
Committee or through, you know, if directly, if you think that's the appropriate way to do
it, do that and be prepared. And when we do all these requests, I will not be able to
schedule another meeting until we request those, we receive those requests back in
writing to us. So remember that, that we're gonna wait for all the responses to the
requests that you have asked to be made before we can schedule this meeting. But it is
the intent of this Chairman to schedule the meeting as soon as we receive all the
responses to the requests that you are making. Okay? So if it's--Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. And thank you for your comments
about, of bringing back this item. Just a request in regards to NOAA, if we could have a
representative from NOAA come to your next meeting because I, I don't think this is the,
the first and the last request that we're going to make through the Federal government.
You know, it would be. . in our best interest that we hear from NOAA in regards to
funding from the Federal government to these type of issues, injection wells and water
quality, so that we all get a, you know, better understanding at the same time. Thank you.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: Yeah. And we'll make that request. Thank you. Members, without
objections, the Chair would like to defer this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: No objections? So ordered.

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR MEDEIROS: So, Members, thank you for your patience and for your participation in
this morning's meeting that ended up in this afternoon. Hopefully you have enough time
to get some lunch before this afternoon's meeting.
So at this time, the Chair will adjourn this meeting of the Infrastructure Management
Committee of June 7 th at 12:40 p.m. [sic]. Meeting adjourned . . . (gavel).. .
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